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FINANCE COMMITTEE
MEETING
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NOTICE OF MEETING

The Finance Committee of the University of California Hastings College of the Law Board of
Directors will hold an Open Meeting on Thursday, November 8, 2018.
EVENT:

Meeting of the University of California
Hastings College of the Law Board of Directors
Finance Committee

DATE:

Thursday, November 8, 2018

PLACE:

UC Hastings College of the Law
A. Frank Bray Board Room
198 McAllister Street, 1-Mezzanine
San Francisco, CA 94102

STARTING TIME:

10:15 a.m.

AGENDA:

See Attached

This notice is available at the following University of California, Hastings College of the Law website
address: http://www.uchastings.edu/board

--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------For further information please contact Elise Traynum, Secretary of the Board of Directors, 198 McAllister Street,
San Francisco, CA 94102, (415) 565-4851. You are encouraged to inform Ms. Traynum of your intent to speak
during the public comment period 72 hours in advance of the meeting.
The University of California, Hastings College of the Law subscribes to the Americans with Disabilities Act. If you
need reasonable accommodations, please contact the Secretary’s Office by 10 a.m. on Monday, November 5, 2018.

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
OPEN MEETING AGENDA

Thursday, November 8, 2018 — 10:15 a.m.
UC Hastings College of the Law
A. Frank Bray Board Room
198 McAllister Street, 1-Mezzanine
San Francisco, CA 94102

1.

Roll Call
Chair Don Bradley
Director Adrienne Go
Director Thomas Gede
Director Claes Lewenhaupt
Director Christian Osmeña
Director Chip Robertson

2.

Public Comment Period on Open Agenda Items

*3.

Approval of Minutes – August 9, 2018

*4.

Report of the Subcommittee on Audit
*4.1
4.2
4.3

Review of Draft 2018 Audit Report and Required Communications
UC Hastings – Overview of Financial Operations – 2018
Adjournment to Closed Executive Session Pursuant to Education Code
Section 92032(b)(7) Discussion of Management Performance as Related
to the Operations of College

(Oral)
(Written)

(Written)
(Written)

5.

Investment Report as of September 30, 2018

(Written)

6.

State Budget Report for 2018-19 as of September 30, 2018

(Written)

7.

Auxiliary Enterprises Budget Report as of September 30, 2018

(Written)

8.

State Contracts and Grants in Excess of $50,000

*8.1
*8.2
*8.3
*8.4
*8.5
*8.6
*8.7
*8.8
9.

Professional Services – MF Digital Marketing - MSL
Construction Services – Western Roofing – Roof Repair
Information Systems – West Group - Library
Information Systems – Lexis Nexis /Matthew Bender - Library
Information Systems – Salesforce – Software License
Information Systems – TBD – Budget Development Software
Professional Services – Huron Consulting – UC Path Project
Professional Services – HR Solutions – UC Path Project

(Written)
(Written)
(Written)
(Written)
(Written)
(Written)
(Written)
(Written)

Nonstate Contracts and Grants in Excess of $50,000
*9.1 Building Engineering – GSH Services – McAllister Tower
(Written)
*9.2 Site License & Usage Agreement – UC Davis - Academic Village
(Written)
*9.3 Site License Agreement – Fairmont Hotel – Reunion Weekend
(Written)
*9.4 Site License Agreement – Another Planet Entertainment – Commencement (Written)
*9.5 Professional Services – LRCP – Economic & Planning Systems
(Written)
*9.6 Professional Services – LRCP – Telesis Engineering
(Written)
*9.7 Professional Services – LRCP – Public Financial Management
(Written)
*9.8 Legal Services – LRCP – Gibson Dunn
(Written)
*9.9 Design Services – LRCP Kane Hall – MkThink Architects
(Written)
*9.10 Project Management Services – LRCP Kane Hall – CMA
(Written)
*9.11 Grant – U.S. State Department – Haitian Law Clinic Development
(Written)
*9.12 Grant – Merck Foundation & Health Partners: Care Ecosystem
(Written)
*9.13 Grant – Kellogg Foundation – Barriers to Nursing Mothers in Workplace (Written)

10.

Long Range Campus Plan – Update

(Oral)

11.

Listing of Checks and Electronic Transfers over $50,000

(Written)

*12.

Adjournment

Agenda Item: 1
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FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
Roll-Call

Here

Absent
Chair Donald Bradley
Chair Tom Gede
Director Adrienne Go
Director Claes Lewenhaupt
Chair Christian Osmeña
Director Chip Robertson

Start time: ______:______a.m.

Agenda Item: 2
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November 8, 2018

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING
Public Comment Period
This item is reserved for members of the public to comment on non-agenda and agenda items.

Agenda Item: *3
Finance Committee
November 8, 2018

OPEN FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

ACTION ITEM:

Approval of Minutes: May 10, 2018

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA
HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
FINANCE COMMITTEE
MEETING MINUTES
AUGUST 9, 2018

Thursday, August 9, 2018 — 11:00 a.m.
UC Hastings College of the Law
A. Frank Bray Board Room
198 McAllister Street, 1-Mezzanine
San Francisco, CA 94102

1.

Roll Call

Board of Directors Present:
Chair Don Bradley
Director Tina Combs
Director Claes Lewenhaupt
Director Mary Noel Pepys
Director Chip Robertson
Director Courtney Power
Director Tom Gede (Ex-Officio)
Staff Present:
Chancellor & Dean David Faigman
General Counsel Elise Traynum
Academic Dean Morris Ratner
Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Controller Sandra Plenski
UC Path Consultant Debbie Tran
Others Present:
Foundation President Eric Wersching
Foundation Treasurer Sandy Nichols

2.
Public Comment
(Written)
Chair Bradley opened the Public Comment period. Hearing no requests from the public to speak,
Chair Bradley closed the Public Comment period.
*3.
Approval of Minutes — May 10, 2018
(Written)
Chair Bradley called for the approval of the May 10, 2018 minutes. The minutes were approved
as distributed.
4.

2017-18 Year-end Investment Report
(Written)
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Before commencing his report, Mr. Seward announced some organizational changes in the
Department of Fiscal Services. First, the Executive Director of Operations, Rhiannon Bailard,
will start on August 13. In this newly created position, Ms. Bailard will oversee Security,
Facilities, and the Client Services Center, in addition to supporting some community outreach
efforts with the Tenderloin Community Benefit District. Secondly, a Director of Auxiliary
Enterprises position will be created from an existing FTE under Jarda Brych, who currently
manages McAllister Tower. His responsibilities will be expanded to include be supervising the
parking garage and retail leases. Finally, Sandra Plenski will be assuming the role of Controller,
as former Controller Deborah Tran segues to a consultancy position overseeing the UCPath
project implementation team. Mr. Seward noted that Ms. Tran’s consultancy role is expected to
span 18 months.
Moving on to the 2017-18 Year-end Investment Report, Mr. Seward noted that he does not yet
have the investment return as of June 30, 2018; the most recent data is as of May 31, and GEP
had an 8.54% total return over the year. That compares to about a 14% return in the prior year.
Mr. Seward explained that the College follows the investment philosophy of the University of
California and invests excess cash and long-term investments in the General Endowment Pool
("GEP") managed by the Office of the Treasurer. Cash needed for near-term liquidity needs is
allocated to the Short Term Investment Pool (STIP). The STIP had a Fiscal Year to-date return
of 1.46%.
5.

State Budget Report - Preliminary 2017-18 Year-end
(Written)
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Mr. Seward presented the preliminary year-end State budget report for 2017-18, and noted that
the audited 2017-18 data will be presented in the Financial Statements and Independent
Auditors’ Report to be prepared by Moss Adams. Mr. Seward reported that the College
achieved the goal set in the five-year plan revised budget, with the only major variance being the
realized and unrealized gain function. A large portion of the funds that support the College's
core operations is auxiliary overheads (approximately $1.04 million). Moving on to
expenditures, Mr. Seward noted that the significant change is a $47.4 million unfunded liability
related retiree healthcare.
*6.

Core Operations - State Budget for 2018-19
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Mr. Seward presented on the highlights of both the revenue and expenditure budgets for 2018-19.

Beginning with state appropriations, Mr. Seward reported that General Fund support is increasing
55% (or $7,043,000) over 2017-18. Included in this amount is $4,500,000 in one-time funding for
the Diversity Pipeline and $1,457,000 for UCPath implementation costs. An additional $500,000
is appropriated for deferred maintenance in 2018-19.
The committee briefly discussed tuition and related fees. While annual student tuition and fees for
the JD and LL.M. programs are unchanged, Mr. Seward confirmed that MSL program tuition will
see a reduction from $41,200 to $39,000 in 2018-19, as approved by the Board of Directors at the
June 2018 meeting.
Upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, the Finance Committee recommended that the
Board of Directors adopt the proposed state budget for 2018-19.
7.

Core Operations – State Budget Planning for 2019-20
(Oral)
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Each year the College submits its spending and revenue plan to the state’s Department of
Finance, in addition to any requests for additional funding for both its operating and
infrastructure needs. Mr. Seward noted that the planning model adopted an assumption that
student fees would increase by 5% for Fall 2019. This figure has been communicated to both
houses of the legislature.
Mr. Seward noted that the following factors require additional discussion to help College staff to
prepare a budget submittal which is reflective of the Board of Directors’ policy directives:
• The Governor’s Multi-Year Funding Plan and Student Fees
• Enrollment Management, Financial Aid & Tuition Discounting
• Employee Compensation & Collective Bargaining
• Capital Outlay & Five Year Infrastructure Plan
A brief discussion followed regarding the uncertainty of whether the new administration will
continue Governor Brown’s funding policy, where General Fund budget increases were
programmed to avoid the necessity of increasing student fees. Mr. Seward noted that application
of Governor Brown’s approach resulted in 2% annual increases applied to total Core Funding
(student fees and General Fund support). These increases were made under the assumption that
tuition charges for resident students would remain flat. Mr. Seward noted that there have been
eight consecutive years of flat General Enrollment Fees.
8.

Nonstate Budget Report - Preliminary 2017-18 Year-end
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Not discussed.

(Written)

*9.

(Written)

Nonstate Budget for 2018-19
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Not discussed.

Upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, the Finance Committee recommended that the
Board of Directors approve the attached non-state budget for 2018-19.

10.

Preliminary 2017-18 Year-end Auxiliary Enterprises Budget Report
(Written)
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Mr. Seward presented the 2017-18 preliminary year-end budget reports for auxiliary enterprises,
which includes McAllister Tower, Parking Garage, Student Health Services, Business Center,
and College Events Center. Mr. Seward reported that on overall basis, auxiliary enterprises
generated cash flow of $3,342,964 from operations and after debt service. Other non-operating
revenues (investment activities).
A brief discussion followed regarding a possible parking fee increase in January 2019.
*11.

Nonstate Auxiliary Enterprises Budget Change 2018-19
(Written)
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
The 2018-19 beginning budgets for auxiliary enterprises were approved by the Board of
Directors at their June 2018 meeting. Mr. Seward explained that within the College’s auxiliary
enterprises, a new Client Services Center (CSC) was created to segregate and track sponsored
events and programming, which are expected to become a significant revenue source in the
future. This nonstate budget change is being proposed to include the staffing and operating costs
which will support the CSC program. Mr. Seward clarified that this new nonstate account was
proposed in the 2017-18 budget, but the accounting change was not implemented. With the
exception of administrative overhead, the room rental revenues and nonmandatory transfer
reflected activities previously existing within the College’s Nonstate Unrestricted Fund budget.
Upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, the Finance Committee recommended that the
Board of Directors approved the 2018-19 nonstate budget change for the Client Services Center.
12.

State Contracts in Excess of $50,000
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward

(Written)

*12.1 Construction Services – Research Centers - Roebuck
Authority is requested to award a construction services contract to Roebuck
Construction for tenant improvement work on the 6th floor of Kane Hall. A public
bidding process was conducted.
At its December 2017 meeting, the Board of Directors approved an allocation of
$3,400,000 for the Kane Hall Repurposing Project. This project involves construction and
equipping the 6th floor of Kane Hall to create four research centers, two classrooms and a
quiet room. Also included is funding for modular furniture and audio-visual equipment.
Of the $3.4 million, $2.75 million was earmarked for the actual construction, while the
rest was designated for design, professional services and furniture, fixtures and
equipment. Bid savings are being captured and re-budgeted to support new 2018-19
activities. It is recommended that the bid be awarded to the lowest bidder, Roebuck
Construction.
*12.2 Other Contract Services – Website Maintenance – Modern Tribe
Not discussed.

*12.3 Other Contract Services Elevator Maintenance – Kone
Not discussed.
*12.4 Time Reporting System – UCI Office of Information Technology
Not discussed.
*12.5 Site Agreement – UC Davis Graduate School of Management
Mr. Seward reported that discussions are underway to renew the site license agreement
with UC Davis’ Graduate School of Management for the second year of their Master of
Business Analytics program. He concluded that a recommendation will be presented at
the September 2018 meeting of the Board of Directors.
*12.6 Budget Management Software – To Be Determined
Upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, the Finance Committee recommended that the
Board of Directors approved items *12.1-*12.6.
13.

Nonstate Contracts and Grants in Excess of $50,000
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward

(Written)

*13.1 Space Rental - Hastings Reunion 2018 - Fairmont Hotel
Not discussed.
*13.2 Grant – UCSF – Dyslexia Prison Pilot Study
Not discussed.
Upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, the Finance Committee recommended that the
Board of Directors authorize award of the nonstate contracts outlined in items *13.1-*13.2.
14.

UC Path Payroll System Conversion – Project Update
(Written)
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Mr. Seward reported that implementation of the UCPath Payroll System Conversion project
began in April 2018 in collaboration with University of California Office of the President
(UCOP) project staff. He noted that UC Hastings is officially designated as part of Deployment
2, which is currently scheduled to go live in September 2019. The project is being led by UC
Path Consultants Leslie Lundberg and Deborah Tran. They will be assisted by Camilla Tubbs
(Associate Dean of Library and Technology) and consultant Sheryl Koga.
Huron Consulting supported in securing a full-time project manager and a senior consultant with
Peoplesoft expertise. Mr. Seward anticipates that the College will reduce their roles over time
and replace them with staffers with a lower billable rate.
Major funding support has been provided by the Department of Finance, with a one-time
appropriation of $1.5 million. Additionally, the College has received a tentative agreement from
the UCOP project office, which will fund a Project Manager at .2FTE level.

A brief conversation followed regarding key accomplishments of the project, as well as some
areas of potential concern.
15.

Long Range Campus Plan – Project Update & Predevelopment Budget
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward

(Written)

16.

Annual Report on Insurance Coverage – 2018-19
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
Not discussed.

(Written)

*17.

Endowment Management – Hawaii Scholarship Fund
(Written)
Presented by Chief Financial Officer David Seward
When the Hawaii Scholarship Fund was established by Board Resolution in 2008, it created a
permanently restricted endowment fund which provides scholarships for deserving Hastings
students who are permanent residents of Hawaii. As a matter of practice, the student scholarship
recipient is selected with input by the Hawaii Scholarship Fundraising Committee.
The current fund agreement (pages 122-123 of the meeting materials) indicates that income from
the fund will be used for awards in accordance with established procedures and criteria, and “any
unexpended income shall be available for future awards.” As a result of several years during
which endowment payout was made without student awards, an ending current-use cash balance
of $46,774 exists. At the request of the Hawaii Scholarship Fundraising Committee, the
unspent current-use cash balance remaining as of June 30, 2018, is proposed to be
transferred and added to the endowment of the Hawaii Scholarship Fund.
Upon motion duly made, seconded, and carried, the Finance Committee recommended that the
Board of Directors approve a one-time transfer of $46,774 in unspent accumulated current-use
cash to the endowment of the Hawaii Scholarship Fund.
18.

Financial Aid – Closeout of Perkins Loan Fund
(Written)
Presented by Controller Sandra Plenski
Controller Sandra Plenski provided an overview of the Federal Perkins Loan Program, which the
College has participated in since the 1970s. Loans made through this federal program are low
cost, fixed interest (5%) student loans for eligible borrowers with exceptional financial need. A
combination of federal and institutional capital provided funding for the program. Over its
duration, a total of $78.7 million was loaned to UC Hastings students. In 2017, the Federal
Perkins Loan Program was discontinued by Congress for graduate schools. These funds are
instead being redirected by the Department of Education (DOE) to support the Federal Direct
Loan program. The closure of this program represents a loss for UC Hastings students, as well as
a loss of overhead revenue for the College.
Continuing her report, Ms. Plenski explained that in May 2018, the College began the return
process, a long and tedious practice known as “assignment,” which involves liquidation of the
Federal Perkins Loan portfolio so that all outstanding loans may be returned to the DOE.

An estimated 11,000 documents have been transmitted to DOE, as the College has completed
this phase of assignment. To date, there are two accounts assigned by UC Hastings with missing
promissory notes, which total under $6,000.
Ms. Plenski noted that as loans are accepted, the loan receivable (non-current assets) will be
reduced on the College’s balance sheet. Further, the College continues to receive loan payments
for loans assigned but not yet accepted. The College is required to remit these funds to the
Department of Education and is doing so on an ongoing basis.
After the loans are accepted or rejected, there will be a final audit of the Federal Perkins fund
through a special engagement with Moss Adams in late fiscal year 2019. Moss Adams has been
made aware of this project and is being kept up to date on the liquidation process.
19.

Listing of Checks and Wire Transfers over $50,000
Not discussed.

(Written)

20.
Adjournment
There being no further business to come before the Finance Committee, the meeting was
adjourned at approximately 12:30p.m.

(Oral)

Agenda Item *4.1
Finance Committee
November 8, 2018

ACTION ITEM
1.

REPORT BY:

Subcommittee on Audit Chair Claes Lewenhaupt
Chief Financial Officer David Seward

2.

SUBJECT:

Review of Draft 2018 Audit Report and Required
Communications

3.

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Finance Committee recommend to the Board of Directors acceptance of the
Reports of Independent Auditors and Financial Statements and Required
Communications for the fiscal ending on June 30, 2018.

4.

BACKGROUND:

The following reports and audit documentation were prepared by auditors from Moss
Adams, LLC. The updated draft financial statements has non-substantive revisions
pending. Enclosed please find the following draft document:


Report of Independent Auditors and Financial Statements with Supplementary
Information (including Single Audit Report)

Representatives of the UC Hastings Foundation, a component unit of the College, have
also been invited to attend.
A closed executive session will be conducted to allow for a discussion concerning
management performance between the auditors and the Finance Committee.

5.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:

Be it resolved, that the Finance Committee recommend to the Board of Directors
acceptance of the Reports of Independent Auditors and Financial Statements and
Required Communications for the fiscal ending on June 30, 2018.

Agenda Item *4.1
Finance Committee
November 8, 2018

Reports of Independent Auditors and
Financial Statements with Supplementary Information

University of California Hastings College
of the Law
June 30, 2018 and 2017
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Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors
University of California Hastings College of the Law
Report on the Financial Statements
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of University of California Hastings College
of the Law (the “College” and “UC Hastings”) and its discretely presented component unit, the UC
Hastings Foundation (the “Foundation”), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, and
the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the College’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

1

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of University of California Hastings College of the Law and its discretely
presented component unit, the UC Hastings Foundation, as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, the College
adopted new Government Accounting Standard Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 75, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. As required by the standard,
net position was restated as of June 30, 2017. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.
Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

The accompanying Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 4 through 18, and the
supplementary information on net retiree health benefits liability and pension liability on page 52 are
not a required part of the financial statements but are supplementary information required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers them to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. This supplementary information is the responsibility of management. We have applied certain
limited procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, which consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s response to our
inquiries, the financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the supplementary information
because limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.

San Francisco, California
October __, 2018

2

Management Discussion and Analysis

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016
(Unaudited)
The University of California, Hastings College of the Law (the “College” or “UC Hastings”) presents its financial
statements for fiscal year 2018 with comparative data presented for fiscal years 2017 and 2016. The emphasis of
discussions concerning these statements will be for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017 (2018 and
2017, respectively). There are three financial statements presented: the Statements of Net Position; the Statements
of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position; and the Statements of Cash Flows.
The following discussion and analysis is intended to help readers of the College’s financial statements to better
understand its financial position and operating activities. It should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its
entirety by, the related financial statements and footnotes. The financial statements, footnotes, and this discussion
and analysis were prepared by the College and are the responsibility of its management.
THE COLLEGE
The College was founded in 1878 as the “law department” of the University of California (the “UC”). UC Hastings is
the oldest public law school in California. Founded by Chief Justice Serranus Clinton Hastings, the College was
established by the California Legislature with its own Board of Directors which has operated the College
independently of the Board of Regents of the University of California since its founding. The Board of Regents
possesses degree-granting authority but all other aspects of the College are under the control of the UC Hastings
Board of Directors. The College is the only stand-alone, public law school in the nation.
The mission of UC Hastings is to provide an academic program of the highest quality, based upon scholarship,
teaching, and research, to a diverse student body and to assure that its graduates have a comprehensive
understanding and appreciation of the law and are well trained for the multiplicity of roles they will play in a society
and profession that are subject to continually changing demands and needs.
UC Hastings’ reputation for academic excellence, its formal affiliation with the University of California, and its
location in San Francisco’s downtown civic center are major factors contributing to the overall strength of the law
school. This intrinsic quality is reflected in the large number of applications received for a limited number of seats.
Hence, UC Hastings’ enrollment management objectives are to matriculate select students of the highest academic
credentials.
THE UC HASTINGS FOUNDATION
The UC Hastings Foundation (the “Foundation”) was organized for the purpose of providing an organization for
individuals dedicated to the support of the College and to provide a means for soliciting, receiving, and making
financial contributions and garnering volunteer support to the College, and to otherwise assist its students, alumni,
administration, faculty, and Board of Directors. The Foundation is a California nonprofit public benefit corporation
exempt from federal income tax pursuant to Internal Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3) and a public charity pursuant
to Code Section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv).
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016
(Unaudited)
Substantially all restricted gifts and unrestricted gifts made to the College are recognized and accounted for within
the Foundation’s accounts. To support the College’s efforts, the Foundation allocates block grants to the College
from the proceeds of unrestricted gifts made to the Foundation. These blocks grants are designated by the
Foundation to support the College’s alumni office and non-state costs associated with institutional advancement
functions along with funding for special events and other programs based on the Chancellor and Dean’s institutional
priorities. Additionally, the Foundation supports a variety of purposes such as student scholarships, faculty research
and professional development, lectureships, and moot court activities with funds raised from annual giving, class
campaigns, and from memorial and endowment gifts.
The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain
Organizations are Component Units, is further clarified by GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity:
Omnibus, detailing the major component unit concept. Major component units are determined based on the nature
and significance of their relationship to the primary government. This determination would generally be based on
any of the following factors: (a) the services provided by the component unit to the citizenry are such that separate
reporting as a major component unit is considered to be essential to financial statement users, (b) there are
significant transactions with the primary government, or (c) there is a significant financial benefit or burden
relationship with the primary government.
The GASB requires the Foundation, as the College’s legally separate, tax-exempt, affiliated campus foundation, to
be considered a component unit of the College and presented discretely in the College’s financial statements due
to the nature and significance of the Foundation’s relationship with the College.
Overview of the College
On a nationwide basis, law school applications are rebounding. The Law School Admission Council (LSAC) reports
that 60,700 individuals applied to the 204 ABA-accredited law schools in the United States during the 2018
application cycle (i.e., the 2018-19 academic year). This number represents an 8.2% increase from the number of
2016-17 applicants in fiscal year 2017, but it is still far below the most recent peak number of 87,900 applicants in
the 2009-10 cycle. For law schools in the Far West region, which includes Nevada, California, and Hawaii, the
number of applications increased by 10.2% from 2017-18. Also encouraging was that the 2018-19 national applicant
pool was characterized by a marked increase in the number of Law School Admission Test scores between 165
and 180 indicating that higher performing students are renewing their interest in pursuing a legal education.
For the 2018-19 academic year, a total of 3,234 applications were received, an increase of 7.5% from last year’s
total of 3,009. The variance between the 7.5% increase in applications at UC Hastings and the 10.2% increase
experienced for the Far West Region may be partially attributable to the high cost of housing in San Francisco as
the College can only provide subsidized housing for 30% of its students. The increase in applications enabled the
College to be slightly more selective than the last two cycles in terms of the acceptance rate: 45% of our applicants
were selected. The acceptance rates for the 2017 and 2016 cycles were 49% and 47%, respectively.
In 2017, UC Hastings received 3,009 applications compared to 3,416 in 2016, a decline of 12%. About half of the
decline in applications was from California and the other half was from other states. In 2016, UC Hastings received
3,416 applications for the JD program to fill its targeted enrollment of 320 first year students.
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016
(Unaudited)
For the 2018 fiscal year (July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018) and the 2018 academic year (August 2018 to May 2018),
22% of the applicants admitted to UC Hastings enrolled at the law school. This yield is consistent with the 2017
enrollment yield and slightly higher than the 2016 yield of 21%. Our U.S. News ranking for the 2017-2018 application
cycle was 58 which was down from 54 in the previous cycle.
There were several significant changes to the enrollment process this year. The discount rate was reduced from
42% to 37.5% based on the school’s multi-year budget plan. Further, recipients of fee discount scholarships are
now required to finish in the top three-quarters of the class for their scholarships to be renewed for their second and
third years. Also, the discount rate reduction resulted in smaller merit scholarship and need-based grant offers than
made in previous cycles.
For the fall 2018 academic year, the College enrolled 313 JD students substantially meeting its enrollment target of
320 students. In fall 2017, the College exceeded its JD enrollment target of 320 students with 326 students
matriculating. For the fall 2016 entering class, 346 students matriculated also having an enrollment target of 320 as
a goal.
The LSAT median for the incoming class was 158 and an undergraduate GPA of 3.44. In comparison, the entering
class in fall 2017 had a median LSAT of 159 on the LSAT and a 3.42 undergraduate GPA.
In terms of diversity, 2018 saw increases in the percentages of Asian Americans and Latin Americans in our
applicant pool and a decrease of 1.1% in the number of African Americans. Diversity among our enrolled first year
JD students increased substantially from the last few years, with students of color comprising 48% of the class. The
largest increases were in Latin enrollment (from 13.7% in the Class of 2020 to 18.5% in the Class of 2021) and
Asian American enrollment (from 20.7% in the class of 2020 to 23.6% in the Class of 2021). African American
enrollment continues to lag, with only six African American students in the 1L class, a number identical to last year.
For enrollment planning, in the near term, targets call for enrollment levels of between 900 and 930 JD students for
upcoming years representing an overall enrollment target of 950 full-time equivalent (“FTE”) including students
matriculating in the JD, Master of Laws (“LLM”), exchange students and Master of Studies in Law (“MSL”) programs.
Total FTE enrollment for the 2017-18 academic year was 929.1 JD students, 23.6 LLM students, 3.2 MSL students
and 3 visitors for a total of 958.9 full-time equivalent students. Total FTE enrollment for the 2016-17 academic year
was 904.5 JD students, 30 LLM students, 2.4 MSL students and 3.3 visitors for a total of 940.2 full-time equivalent
students. In 2015-16 academic year there were 878 JD students, 22.5 LLM students, 5 MSL students and 2.2
visitors for a total of 907.7 full-time equivalent students.
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Highlights of Financial Operations
Progress was achieved in a number of areas pertaining to financial and other operations. Outlined below are the
developments that have had an impact on the operations of the College.
•

State of California – Increased Operating and Capital Support
State support continues to grow rebounding significantly from the depths of the State of California’s
recession. State operating support has increased by an average of 10.2% annually over the past five years.
The 2018 budget continued the Governor’s commitment to a multiyear funding plan for higher education.
The plan provides annual increases in General Fund appropriations over a six-year period (2013‑14
through 2018‑19). The plan addresses affordability and assumes a freeze on resident tuition through 2018
‑19 to avoid contributing to higher student debt levels. For 2018, the Budget Act increased state operating
support by $1.1 million (9.3%) and stipulated that professional school fees for law be held constant for the
fifth consecutive year.

•

Hastings College of the Law $17,610,000 Refunding Bonds, Series 2017
In December 2017, the College undertook a bond issuance, the 2017 Bonds, to refund all of the outstanding
Hastings College of the Law Bonds, Series 2008 Bonds to achieve economic savings. The term of the initial
Series 2008 Bonds was maintained such that the outstanding debt is fully amortized and will be
extinguished in twenty years. The 2017 Bonds were structured to achieve cash flow savings of $200,000
annually in 2019 through 2022. Annual cash flow savings thereafter average approximately $120,000. Total
net present value savings, discounted at the 2.65% arbitrage yield, is $2.1 million.

•

Long Range Campus Plan - New Academic Building at 333 Golden Gate Avenue
UC Hastings and its trajectory towards comprehensive, campus-wide modernization is in response to
evolving student, institutional, and community needs. The Long Range Campus Plan (“LRCP”) provides a
timely and critical opportunity to advance the institution’s long-term objectives and fulfill its mission as one
of the leading law schools in the country.
The first phase of LRCP implementation is a new academic facility at 333 Golden Gate Avenue funded by
$55.5 million of Lease Revenue Bond financing appropriated in the Budget Acts of 2015 and 2016.
Supplementing state funding is over $3 million in private donations reflective of the support and enthusiasm
of the school’s alumni. The new academic building consists of approximately 57,500 gross square foot
which includes classrooms, offices, legal clinics, a conference center, and indoor/outdoor student life
spaces on a 12,000 square foot parcel owned by UC Hastings. This building, designed for LEED Platinum
Certification, will replace academic functions and faculty offices currently located in Snodgrass Hall at 198
McAllister Street, create a cohesive campus, and enable UC Hastings to create state‐of‐the‐art classroom
facilities serving UC Hastings for many decades to come.
The California Department of General Services is managing the project with Clark Construction/SOM as
the design-build team. Construction began in April 2018 and is scheduled for completion by December
2019. Classes in the new building are anticipated to begin in spring 2020.

Page 7

UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016
(Unaudited)
•

Enrollment Management and Tuition Discounting
UC Hastings, like most law schools, has increased financial aid allocations for students in an effort to protect
LSAT/GPA medians. While it is obvious that tuition discounting benefits students by reducing aggregate
student debt, it does so in tension with the economic well-being of the law school. This trend is common in
institutions of higher education as tuition discounting strategies have affected the bottom line at many
colleges.
Beginning in 2015 and continuing in 2019, the financial aid strategy was changed to award larger meritbased scholarships competitive with peer schools to attract and retain students with credentials meeting
institutional standards. Student financial aid for the fall 2018 entering class represents a 37.5% discount
rate, reduced from 43% in 2017-18. Plans call for fall 2019 class to ratchet down to 30%, returning to
historical norms.

Financial Position
The narrative detailing UC Hastings’ financial position combines figures for the College and the Foundation, unless
otherwise indicated.
The statements of net position present the financial position of the College and the Foundation at the end of 2018
and 2017. The purpose of the statements of net position is to present to the reader a fiscal snapshot of UC Hastings.
From the data presented, readers of the statements of net position are able to determine the assets available to
support the operations of the College.
They are also able to determine its liabilities in terms of how much the College owes vendors, investors and lending
institutions. Finally, the statements of net position provide an overview of net position (assets, deferred outflows of
resources minus liabilities, deferred inflows of resources) and their availability for expenditure.
The net position section is classified into three major categories. The first category, Net Investment in Capital
Assets, presents the College’s equity in property, plant, and equipment. The next asset category is Restricted
Assets, which is divided into two categories, Nonexpendable and Expendable. The corpus of nonexpendable
restricted resources is only available for investment purposes. Expendable restricted net assets are available for
expenditure by the College, but must be spent for purposes as determined by donors and/or external entities that
have placed time or purpose restrictions on the use of the assets. The final category is Unrestricted Assets which
are those net assets available for any lawful purpose to support the College.
The 2018 financial statements were significantly impacted by two developments: GASB Statement No. 75,
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions and the closeout of the
Perkin Loan Program by the United States Department of Education (“ED”).
The implementation of GASB Statement No. 75 improves accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (i.e., retiree health care). Working closely with the
Office of the President of the University of California, the financial statement impact of GASB 75, both on the 2018
audited financial statement and the requisite restatement of the 2017 statements is to recognize a $40.9 million
noncurrent liability representing cumulative retiree health care benefits.
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The Federal Perkins Loan Program was discontinued by Congress for graduate schools in 2017. In 2018, the
College began the process of liquidating its Federal Perkins Loan portfolio by returning all outstanding loans to ED.
As of June 30, 2018, all Federal Perkins Loans outstanding have been assigned to ED which is in the process of
reviewing the $9.4 million portfolio. The acceptance process is expected to conclude by December 2018.
As loans are accepted, loans receivable will be reduced on the College’s statement of net position. Further, the
College continues to receive loan payments for loans assigned but not yet accepted. The College is required to
remit these funds to ED and is doing so on an ongoing basis.
Detailed statements of net position are included with the financial statements. A condensed version is shown below:
Condensed Statement of Net Position – 2018, 2017, and 2016 (in thousands)

College
ASSETS
Current assets
Noncurrent assets

$

Total assets

$

8,706
88,968

91
486

$

577
-

8,792

$

2018
Total

Foundation

198,923

Deferred outflows of resources
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities

29,479
169,444

$

-

(Restated)
2017
Total

$

29,570
169,930

$

22,925
179,826

(Restated)
2016
Total

$

16,770
179,599

199,500

202,751

196,369

8,792

10,818

21,116

8,706
88,968

$

7,035
98,141

$

7,740
117,211

Total liabilities

97,674

-

97,674

105,176

124,951

Deferred inflows of resources

21,480

-

21,480

20,437

12,092

TOTAL NET POSITION
Net investment in capital
Assets
Restricted:
Nonexpendable
Expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position

$

65,195

$

23,857
32,306
(32,797)
$

88,561

-

$

179
329
69
$
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577

65,195

$

24,036
32,635
(32,728)
$

89,138

65,440

$

23,428
31,728
(32,640)
$

87,956

67,318
22,159
27,564
(36,599)

$

80,442
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Assets
For 2018, for the College and the Foundation, current assets increased by $6.6 million (29%). Liquidity remained
favorable with cash and cash equivalents slightly increasing from $11.5 million to $12.1 million (5.2%) as the College
sought to assure that sufficient cash was in place for financing planned deficits in core operations (i.e., the
instructional program funded by student fees and state appropriations. Further, the close out of the Federal Perkins
Loan Program is proceeding. This is reflected in an increase of $7.5 million in the current portion of notes receivable,
growing from $1.2 million in 2017 to $8.7 million in 2018. In 2017, the program was discontinued by Congress for
graduate programs. In 2018, the College began the process of liquidating its Federal Perkins Loan portfolio by
returning all outstanding loans to ED. As of June 30, 2018, all Federal Perkins Loans outstanding with UC Hastings
were assigned to ED with a portfolio value of $9.4 million.
For 2017, for the College and the Foundation, current assets increased by $6.1 million (36%), from $16.8 million in
2016 to $22.9 million in 2017. Cash position increased by $626,000 (6%) in large measure due to the sale of $5
million in long-term investments in June 2017 necessary to support liquidity needs given negative operating results.
Restricted cash and cash equivalents increased by $2.1 million (87%) to $4.4 million reflecting collection activity
associated with the Federal Perkins Loan Program.
For 2018, noncurrent assets decreased by $9.9 million (-5.5%), from $179.8 million in 2017 to $169.9 million in
2018. The primary reason for the decline relates to the closeout of the Federal Perkins Loan Program as the noncurrent portion of notes receivable, net, dropped from $12.1 million in 2017 to $768,000 in 2018 as loans were being
processed and transferred to ED. Positive investment returns partially offset this change. The value of endowment
investments increased by $4.0 million (13.2%) from $30.6 million in 2017 to $34.6 million in 2018. Other long term
investments decreased by $2.4 million (-5.7%) from $42.1 million in 2017 to $39.7 million in 2018. The approved
2017-18 budgets for Core Operations (i.e., activities funded by state appropriations and student fee revenues) and
Auxiliary Enterprises authorized deficit spending of $6.1 million through a phased liquidation of reserves to support
the school’s financial aid strategy and provide sufficient liquidity to fulfill budgeted financial obligations.
For 2017, the noncurrent assets of the College and the Foundation increased by $227,000 (.1%). Investment returns
on the General Endowment Pool (“GEP”) managed by the University of California, Office of the Treasurer, were
14.8% for the year; these positive investment returns favorably impacted the closing values of endowment
investments and other long-term investments as balances residing in these accounts were fully invested in the GEP.
For the College and Foundation, endowment investments under the College’s control increased by $3.2 million
(11.8%): from totals of $27.3 million to $30.1 million. Other long-term investments increased by $787,000 (1.9%) as
increases generated by favorable market returns were substantially offset by the liquidation of $5.0 million of
investments held in the GEP. Notes receivable net of allowance for doubtful accounts decreased by $1.9 million (12.4%) due to collections from the soon-to-be-expired Federal Perkins Loan Program. Prepaid expenses and other
assets increased by $3.1 million.
The College invests with the University of California, Office of the Chief Investment Officer:
•

The GEP experienced total returns of 8.89% in 2018 compared to total returns of 14.80% in 2017. Over
time, funds managed by the University of California have performed well with average annualized returns
of 6.52% over three years, 8.83% over five years and 6.39% over ten years. These results also compare
favorable to policy benchmarks for these time frames adopted by the Investment Committee of the Regents
of the University of California Investment (8.44% for 2018, 6.22% over three years, 7.65% over five years
and 5.60% over ten years).
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•

The Short Term Investment Pool (STIP) experienced total returns of 1.62% in 2018, an improvement to the
1.25% achieved in 2017.

•

Total market value of the GEP-Operating Pool and GEP-Endowment Pool increased to $74.3 million as of
June 30, 2018, from $72.7 million as of June 30, 2017, an increase of $1.6 million (2.2%) for both the
College and the Foundation.

For the College and Foundation, total assets for 2018 decreased to $199.5 million, a decline of $3.3 million (-1.6%).
In 2017, total assets increased to $202.8 million, an increase of $6.4 million (3.3%) from the prior year.
Liabilities
For 2018, current liabilities increased from $7.0 million to $8.7 million, an increase of $1.7 million or 23.7%. Accounts
payable and accrued liabilities increased by $1.6 million; this includes an increase of $1.9 million in accrued payroll
expense reflecting pay earned through pay periods ending June 30, 2018, but not paid until July 2018, offset by a
decrease in outstanding accounts payable.
For 2017, current liabilities totaled $7 million, a decrease of $705,000 (-9%) from 2016. Accounts payable and
accrued liabilities declined $1.4 million (-27%) as accrued payroll expense declined by $1.3 million from 2016 to
2017 due to the implementation of bi-weekly pay cycles for hourly employees; the 2017 accrual of $134,000
represents pay earned but not remitted for the last two weeks of June 2017. Further, as the pay period ended on
June 30, 2017, no accrual of regular payroll was necessary.
For 2018, noncurrent liabilities increased by $31.8 million (55.6%) from $57.2 million in 2017 to $89.0 million as the
full impact of recent changes in accounting standards, GASB Statement No. 75. Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions, were implemented. A noncurrent liability of $37.6 million was
recognized representing the College’s apportionment of retiree health care costs.
For 2017, noncurrent liabilities decreased by $10 million (-15.4%). The primary reason for the decrease in
noncurrent liabilities was a -31% reduction in the College's net pension liability caused by favorable investment
returns enjoyed by the University of California Retirement Program (“UCRP”). Total assets managed by UCRP
increased from $54.1 billion to $61.6 billion in 2017. Other factors include principal payments associated with debt
service for the Series 2008 Bonds ($650,000) and larger than normal payments ($339,000) of accrued vacation
due to employee transitions brought about by the closure of the Safety & Security Department and the retention of
the University of California at San Francisco (“UCSF”) Police Department to provide campus-wide, integrated safety
and security services.
On an overall basis, total liabilities decreased by $7.5 million from $105.2 million in 2017 to $97.7 million in 2018.
In 2016, total liabilities were $75.4 million.
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Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources are reflected below for the ended fiscal year periods.
2018
Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources

$
$

8,791,746
21,480,000

(Restated) 2017

(Restated) 2016

$
$

$
$

10,818,000
20,437,000

21,116,000
12,092,000

These amounts reflect the acquisition (outflows) or consumption (inflows) of net assets to support employer pension
benefits in the current accounting period but applicable to a future period. Specifically, these amounts are related
to the College’s share of pension and other postemployment benefits, the calculation of which is guided by GASB
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions,
Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, and GASB Statement No. 71, Pension
Transition for Contributions, made subsequent to the measurement date, an Amendment of GASB Statement
No. 68. These amounts fluctuate as actuarial data, such as mortality tables, salary increases, cost of living
adjustments, length of service, inflation, investment rates and other assumptions change from year to year. For
example, if employees are living longer than expected, the total pension liability increases. With no change to the
total pension assets, deferred outflows of resources would increase. The source of these figures is provided for by
Segal Consulting Report dated September 14, 2018 as commissioned by the University of California Controller’s
Office.
NET POSITION
For 2018, nonexpendable restricted net assets – the corpus of endowed funds – increased by $0.6 million (2.6%),
from $23.4 million to $24.0 million. Gifts supporting scholarships and professorships account for $164,000 with the
balance of the increase derived from gains on investments in excess of payout for current use.
For 2017, nonexpendable restricted net assets increased in value to $23.2 million (6.0%). Gifts supporting the
Elkamp and Turriff Endowment, Roger and Carol Dreyer Trial Attorneys Scholarship, Hawaii Scholarship Fund, and
the Bernard and Joan Maier Scholarship Fund added $377,000 to those accounts.
For 2018, expendable restricted net assets increased by $0.9 million (2.8%) due to $794,000 (6.2%) in gifts for
scholarships and fellowships, and an increase of $351,000 (4.5%) in gifts, grants and contracts primarily supporting
research centers. These increases are offset by $348,000 (-3.8%) reduction in Perkins loan funds.
For 2017, expendable restricted net assets increased by $4.1 million (15.0%) due to an increase of $1.5 million
(24%) in instruction and research primarily grants and contracts undertaken by the Center for Refugee Studies,
Center for Worklife Law, and Institute for Innovation and Law, $278,000 (40.0%) in capital projects to support the
Long-Range Campus Plan, and $2.0 million (19%) in increased fundraising for current-use scholarships and
fellowships along with favorable investment returns.
A key measure of financial status is an entity’s unrestricted net position. Unrestricted net position is defined as a
group of items with commercial or exchange value that have no external restrictions regarding their use or function.
Unrestricted net position can be utilized for any decided-upon purpose. This is in contrast to restricted net position
that is assigned to specific purposes.
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For 2018, the unrestricted net position of the College and its Foundation totaled ($32.7) million; the comparable
figure for fiscal year 2017 was $14.7 million. The reduction of $47.4 million in unrestricted net position is primarily
due to the impact of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions which resulted in recognition of a $40.9 million noncurrent liability. The impact of GASB 68
also increased noncurrent liabilities and decreased net unrestricted position by $6.9 million,
For 2017, the unrestricted net position of the College and its Foundation totaled $14.7 million, an increase of $5.9
million. This outcome, largely driven by a $9.6 million in realized and unrealized gain on investments from the 14.8%
total return on funds invested in the GEP, and reductions in liabilities. In 2016, the unrestricted net position of the
College and its Foundation totaled $8.8 million, a decrease of $4.3 million driven by the $7.9 million increase in net
pension liabilities; absent this change the College’s unrestricted net position increased by $3.3 million (25.5%).
Results of Operations
The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position presents UC Hastings’ operating results, as
well as the nonoperating revenues and expenses. Operating revenues primarily include net student tuition and fees,
grants and contracts, and auxiliary activities. Given a public institution’s dependency on revenues such as state
appropriations, gifts and investment income, which are prescribed by GASB as nonoperating revenues, operating
expenses will always exceed operating revenues resulting in an operating loss. Net nonoperating revenues or
expenses are an integral component in determining the increase or decrease in net position.
For 2018, the College (with the Foundation) experienced a net loss of $591,000; when other changes to net assets
are included, a total increase in net assets of $1.7 million was achieved (or 3.1% of total operating and nonoperating
revenues). In 2017, the College (with the Foundation) experienced net income of $7.1 million; when other changes
to net assets are included, the total increase in net assets grows to $9.5 million.
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position For the years ended June 30,
2018, 2017, and 2016 (in thousands)
2018
Operating
College
Foundation
REVENUES
Tuition and fees, net of grants and
scholarships
$
State appropriations
Grants and contracts
Auxiliary enterprises
Private gifts
Block grant - allocation from Foundation
Investment income
Realized/unrealized gain (loss) on
investments
Other revenues
Loan interest, net of expense
Total revenues
EXPENSES
Salaries and benefits
Auxiliary enterprises
Utilities
Supplies and services
Depreciation
Scholarships and fellowships
Grants to UC Hastings
Interest on debt
Events
Other
Total expenses
Income (Loss)
OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Capital grants and gifts
Endowed gifts, capital campaign
Changes in allocation for pension
payable to University of California
Other changes in endowments

$

893
667

4,570
-

$

24
-

34,491

4,594

35,562
5,408
1,071
11,529
1,990
606
1,868

3
4,571
91
1

58,034

4,666

12,884
3,907
907
725

$

5,909
24,332

-

1,355
-

-

1,355

$

(72)

$

22,977

$

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

-

$

-

-

-

24,685
13,786
2,093
8,599
7,690
907
686

$

27,222
10,784
1,212
8,189
6,988
756
608

9,577
818
383

(3,094)
1,099
380

45

63,462

69,224

54,144

35,562
5,408
1,071
11,532
1,990
606
4,571
1,355
91
1,869

36,782
5,216
1,023
10,513
2,045
545
4,608
944
21
2,332

40,345
5,182
917
9,949
2,071
564
3,758
965
146
1,716

64,055

64,029

65,613

$

(593)

$

5,195

$

$

696
-

$

598
-

$

191
886

$

$

5,944
917
667

45

-

22,456
12,884
1,725
8,750
8,477
907
735

(Restated)
2016
Total

35

-

$

$

-

(23,543)

-

-

(Restated)
2017
Total

2018
Total

10

$

Total other changes in net position
Increase (decrease) in net position

22,456
1,725
8,750
-

2018
Non-operating
College
Foundation

237
1,484

1,773
$

1,180

7,514

424
1,606
(140)

2,319
$

(11,469)

1,890
$

(9,579)

Revenues
The College’s instructional program is primarily supported by a combination of net tuition and fees and state
appropriations; for 2018, these revenues represented 61.5% of total operating and nonoperating revenues
(excluding realized gain on sale of investment and unrealized gain on market value of investment).
Tuition and fees net of grants and scholarships declined in 2018 dropping from $24.7 million in 2017 to $22.5 million
in 2018, a decrease of $2.2 million (-9%). The decline is a function of the College’s financial aid strategy which
relies heavily on tuition discounting. UC Hastings, like most law schools, has increased financial aid allocations for
students at the College in an effort to protect LSAT/GPA medians in a period of market turbulence. For 2018, the
College’s overall discount rate was 46.6%. Enrollment roughly conformed to planned levels at a total of 958.9 FTE’s.
Tuition discounting has historically ranged between 28-31% driven in large measure by state policy regarding returnto-aid. For 2016, increased tuition discounting was instituted to allow the College to offer merit-based awards
competitive with benchmark institutions. The budget for 2018 was predicated on a 43% discount for the entering
class in 2018 (i.e., fall 2017). The discount rate for the entering class in 2019 (i.e., fall 2018) has been reduced to
37.5% conforming to the plan adapted by the Board of Directors to reduce tuition discounting to more closely align
to historical averages in the 30% range in future years.
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State appropriations decreased from $13.8 million in 2017 to $12.9 million in 2018 (a reduction of $901,000). This
was anticipated because of a $2 million one-time allocation made in 2017 for deferred maintenance needs in statesupported facilities. Partially offsetting this technical adjustment, the State of California increased ongoing funding
by $1.1 million (9.3%) for the continuation of the Governor’s multi-year funding plan. This increase was predicated
on the commitment to maintain student fees constant; 2018 marked the sixth consecutive year of flat tuition at
$43,486 (excluding activity, health insurance and student health center fees).
The College’s financial position continues to benefit from auxiliary enterprises, primarily student housing and parking
operations, with net income of $3.3 million in 2018. The comparable figure was $3.4 million and $3.1 million in 2017
and 2016, respectively. Revenue associated with sales and services of auxiliary enterprises increased by $155,000
(1.8%); comparable figures of $410,000 (5%) in 2017 and $431,000 (5.6%) in 2016.
The GEP experienced total returns of 8.9% in 2018. This level of market performance generated realized and
unrealized returns of $5.9 million.
Cultivating alumni support and private foundation support continues to be a priority. In 2018, the UC Hastings
Foundation had a successful year raising and transferring to the College $3.7 million in restricted gifts and $907,000
in unrestricted block grants to UC Hastings matching 2016 fundraising levels. Solicitations are focused on
fundraising for need and merit based current-use scholarship awards and physical plant, brick and mortar donations
to support the LRCP.
For 2018, total operating and non-operating revenues were $57.5 million, excluding $5.9 million in realized and
unrealized gains on investments. In 2017, the comparable figure was $59.6 million and in 2016, $57.2 million. On
an overall basis, total revenues decreased by $5.8 million (9.2%) due to a $2.2 million decline in net tuition and fee
revenue (-9%), $902,000 (-6.5%) technical adjustments to back out one-time state appropriations and lower levels
of realized and unrealized gain on investments (realized/unrealized gain of $5.9 million in 2018 contrasted to $9.6
million in 2017).
Expenses
For 2018, for the College, total operating expense decreased by $421,000 (0.7%); from $58.5 million in 2017 to
$58.0 million in 2018. Of the increase, $438,000 represents salaries and benefits costs related to active faculty and
staff with a net increase of $892,000 for salaries and wages offset by a$455,000 reduction in non-pension benefits.
An additional $282,000 increase in costs is a function of pension related benefits, both core retirement and health
care representing pension liability accrual adjustments. Supplies and services increased by $1 million (9.7%) in
2018, driven by $1.5 million in expenditures addressing deferred maintenance funded by a one-time state
appropriation, and other expenditures decreased by $463,000 (-20%).
For 2017, for the College, total operating expense decreased by $1 million (1.7%); from $57.5 million in 2016 to
$56.5 million in 2017. Salaries and non-pension benefits for faculty and staff were held constant, increasing by
$270,000 (0.9%) notwithstanding collective bargaining pay adjustments for represented staff. The fluctuation in
pension benefits from $5.3 million in 2016 to $2.7 million in 2017 is a function of pension liability accrual adjustments
that reduced the annual required contribution as once again favorable investment results benefitted the financial
operations of the College.
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016
(Unaudited)
As shown in the 2018 Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position the College
finished the fiscal year with net loss of $564,000 (before a gain of $1.8 million in other changes in net position for a
total increase in net assets of $1.2 million.
Cash Flows
The Statements of Cash Flows provides information about cash receipts and cash payments during the year. These
statements also help users assess the College’s ability to generate net cash flows, its ability to meet obligations as
they come due, and its need for external financing.
College (In thousands)
(Restated)
2017

2018
Cash provided (used) by
Operating activities
Non capital financing activities
Capital and related financing
activities
Investing activities

$

$

(2,639)
5,046

Net increase (decrease) in cash

15,645

$

15,879

$

13,528
$

13,198

(62)
-

$

-

(330)

13,198
$

(13,520)
14,560

2017

2018

(2,583)
1,213

2,681

15,879
$

(20,412)
18,267
(1,529)
6,355

(234)

CASH, beginning of year
CASH, end of year

(20,303)
17,662

Foundation (In thousands)
(Restated)
2016

$

2016
(52)
-

$

-

108
-

24

19

16

(38)

(33)

124

76

109

(15)

38

$

76

$

109

As required under GASB reporting standards, negative cash flow for “operating activities” is due to the classification
of revenue from state general support appropriations as a “noncapital financing activity” and investment income as
an “investing activity”.
Looking Forward
The path forward for the College is marked both by major opportunities to enhance the school’s competitive position
through physical plant improvements and student attraction and retention initiatives and the constraints imposed by
what continues to be a daunting marketplace for legal education. Outlined are major developments that will affect
the near-term future of the institution.
Improving Market for Legal Education
The total number of LSAT test-takers for 2017-18 rose to 129,165, an 18.1% increase from the prior year. This
important indicator of the broad demand for legal education number peaked at 171,514 tests administered in 200910 subsequently declining for five consecutive years before bottoming out at 101,689 tests administered in 201516. With the number of test takers growing, there is basis for optimism that the demand for legal education is
increasing and that less aggressive fee discounting strategies will be needed in the future.
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016
(Unaudited)
Strong Support from the State of California
For the 2019 state budget, General Fund support in Budget Act of 2018 was set at $19.8 million, an increase of
$7.0 million (or 55%) over 2018. Included in this amount is $4.5 million in one-time funding for California
Scholarships, a diversity pipeline initiative funding financial aid for students from historically black colleges and
universities and the American University in Armenia. Also provided is $1.5 million for one-time implementation costs
related to the College’s participation in a system-wide University of California payroll system upgrade, the UCPath
Project. Further, ongoing support has been increased by $1.1 million (9%) over the base appropriation. An additional
$500,000 was appropriated for deferred maintenance earmarked for the College but scheduled in a separate Budget
Act appropriation. And lastly, an appropriation of $20,000 for initial debt service for payments on the lease-revenue
bonds funding construction at 333 Golden Gate Avenue to be transferred back to the state’s Public Buildings
Construction Fund.
Creating an Academic Village: Implementation of the Long-Range Campus Plan
In December 2017, UC Hastings formally adopted its LRCP. The plan’s preamble is worth repeating at this critical
juncture in its fulfillment:
Great law schools contribute positively to the environment and communities surrounding them. At UC
Hastings we are moving forward to develop a vibrant academic village in the heart of San Francisco, a hub
of innovation co-mingling professional and graduate students in law, medicine and business.
Over the next decade, UC Hastings will build or rehabilitate 75% of its two-block footprint at the nexus of
the Civic Center, Tenderloin and mid-Market neighborhoods we call home. The Long Range Campus Plan
describes how we will take this unprecedented opportunity to provide unique advantages for our students
and radically reduce our carbon footprint while underpinning the ongoing vitality of our community.
The transformation of our campus begins in 2018 with careful attention to too-long deferred infrastructure
improvements in Kane Hall, guaranteeing that it continues to anchor robust academic support for the life of
the College.
Building on this momentum, our new academic facility at 333 Golden Gate will open its doors in spring of
2020, designed to last 50 years or more. Appropriations totaling $55.7 million have been made by the State
of California to support this effort. We are extraordinarily grateful to the Governor and the California State
Legislature for their generous support of UC Hastings in both of these foundational projects. To complement
that support and serve the ambition to make ours a signature, “best of class” campus, our fundraising team
has been working tirelessly to supplement state funds with private donations.
Following completion of 333 Golden Gate, the obsolete academic buildings at 198 McAllister and 50 Hyde
Street will be replaced with approximately 592 new units of campus housing and amenities. Developed in
collaboration with UCSF, this project offers a framework for inter-disciplinary living and work space for
students and faculties of both schools. The proximity of shared teaching and clinical spaces, institutes and
departments on campus will help foster deeper academic collaborations for the benefit of all of our students.
Beginning in fall 2017, UC Davis joined our academic footprint with a ground-breaking Business Analytics
MBA program. Through both building and culture, we are articulating a “Shared Platform” development
model inuring to the benefit of our alumni, present and future, and other supporters in the broader
community.
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UNIVERSITY OF CALIFORNIA HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
June 30, 2018, 2017, and 2016
(Unaudited)
With completion of the Campus Housing at 198 McAllister, the McAllister Tower and Great Hall renovation
will commence. Rehabilitation of this signature structure will provide up to 300 rehabilitated units of housing
and restore access to the Great Hall, a historic but no longer used cathedral with frontage on McAllister St.
at United Nations Plaza.
Each of these projects is planned to tailor critical features of our urban campus to promote the vibrant
academic and cultural environment that contemporary professional schools require. UC Hastings will
amplify these benefits for our students through our partnerships with other institutions in a Shared Platform
of development. The Long Range Campus Plan documents and operationalizes our commitments to
students, faculty, alumni, partners and supporters for continued renewal of our legacy of academic
excellence and public service.
To move the process forward, a Request for Qualifications was issued in February 2018 soliciting qualifications and
expressions of interest from teams interested in developing a new building at 198 McAllister Street and its annex at
50 Hyde Street and the renovation of 100 McAllister Street. Developers had the option of tendering proposals for
one or both project sites. Ten proposals were received.
From this group, three development teams were selected to compete in the Request for Proposal process. In
September 2018, the Board of Directors authorized staff to enter into negotiations with the development team lead
by Greystar/EdR Collegiate Housing partnering with a local development firm, Strada Investment Group.
Negotiations began in October 2018 and are expected to come to closure by June 2019 with three agreements: an
exclusive negotiation agreement, a ground lease and an operating lease that will constitute the formal basis for the
relationship.
UC Hastings is excited to venture forth with this innovative and visionary endeavor.
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University of California Hastings College of the Law
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Restated)
2017
College
Foundation

2018
College

Foundation

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Current portion of notes receivable
Pledges receivable, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets

$

12,059,899
3,584,532
2,492,045
8,729,302
2,613,273

$

38,587
52,052
-

$

11,453,177
4,425,914
2,567,781
1,215,502
3,154,234

$

75,896
32,054
-

29,479,051

90,639

22,816,608

107,950

34,163,168
39,716,120
768,161
9,272,855
85,382,023
141,553

467,271
4,033
15,000
-

30,147,991
42,149,082
12,122,875
9,003,594
85,906,862
-

447,259
3,691
45,000
-

Total noncurrent assets

169,443,880

486,304

179,330,404

495,950

Total assets

198,922,931

576,943

202,147,012

603,900

Total current assets
Noncurrent assets
Endowment investments
Other long-term investments
Notes receivable, net
Pledges receivable, net
Assets held by others
Capital assets, net
Prepaid expenses and other assets

Deferred outflows of resources

8,791,746

10,818,000

-

-

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Compensated absences
Deposits
Unearned revenues
Current portion of long-term debt

5,460,152
1,291,470
345,702
1,058,623
550,000

$

-

$

3,903,694
1,254,771
372,680
829,344
675,000

$

-

8,705,947

-

7,035,489

-

19,909,244
811,900
3,257,172
19,534,000
37,604,000
7,851,740

-

19,803,520
811,900
7,453,257
21,931,000
40,908,000
7,233,221

-

Total noncurrent liabilities

88,968,056

-

98,140,898

-

Total liabilities

97,674,003

-

105,176,387

-

21,480,000

-

20,437,000

-

Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities
Bonds payable, net
Revolving fund advance from the State
Federal contributions to Perkins loan funds
Pension liability, net
Retiree Health Benefits liability, net
Payable to University of California

Deferred inflows of resources
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See accompanying notes.

University of California Hastings College of the Law
Statements of Net Position
June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Restated)
2017
College
Foundation

2018
College
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for
Nonexpendable
Scholarships and fellowships
Instruction and research
Institutional support

$

Sub-total restricted, nonexpendable
Expendable
Student services
Instruction and research
Public and professional services
Institutional support
Capital projects
Scholarships and fellowships
Perkins loan funds
Other
Sub-total restricted, expendable
Unrestricted
Total net position

See accompanying notes.

$

65,195,100

Foundation
$

-

$

65,438,477

$

-

16,554,394
7,052,732
250,000

178,755

15,989,965
7,009,339
250,000

178,755

23,857,126

178,755

23,249,304

178,755

109,724
8,084,069
103,255
155,507
1,159,693
13,692,183
8,885,771
115,723

329,428
-

112,086
7,732,538
148,179
207,549
964,021
12,898,023
9,234,103
118,864

313,413
-

32,305,925

329,428

31,415,363

313,413

(32,797,477)

68,760

(32,751,519)

111,732

88,560,674

$

576,943

$

87,351,625

$

603,900
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University of California Hastings College of the Law
Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017

2018
College
REVENUES
Operating revenues
Tuition and fees
Less: UC Hastings' grants
Less: Tuition and fee scholarships

$

Tuition and fees, net

Foundation

42,025,830
(17,523,215)
(2,046,223)

$

22,456,392

Contributions, capital campaign
Government grants and contracts
Private grants and contracts
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Other operating revenues
Loan interest, net of expenses
Federal Perkins loan interest
Total operating revenues
EXPENSES
Operating expenses
Salaries and wages
Faculty
Non-faculty
Benefits non-pension
Pension benefits
Retiree Health Benefits
Scholarships and fellowships
Auxiliary enterprises, including depreciation expense
of $995,455 ($987,550 in 2017)
Utilities
Supplies and services
Depreciation, excluding auxiliary enterprise portion
Events
Grants
Block grant - allocation to the College
Other

Operating loss

$

-

(Restated)
2017
Foundation

41,451,656
(15,075,040)
(1,691,653)

-

24,684,963

-

437,429
1,288,273
8,750,366
893,342
34,036
632,126

4,570,324
24,200
-

788,729
1,304,329
8,598,847
807,966
42,692
339,931

4,546,838
9,950
-

34,491,964

4,594,524

36,567,457

4,556,788

13,024,884
14,712,870
4,816,383
1,252,979
1,754,750
606,051

Total operating expenses

-

College

-

12,379,399
14,466,142
4,365,073
2,725,435
2,846,000
544,894

-

5,408,094
1,070,597
11,528,955
1,989,969
1,868,199

3,065
91,448
3,664,245
907,000
521

5,215,734
1,023,158
10,513,038
2,044,784
2,331,531

174
21,408
3,700,640
907,000
-

58,033,731

4,666,279

58,455,188

4,629,222

(23,541,767)

(71,755)

(21,887,731)

(72,434)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State operating appropriations
Gifts, noncapital
Investment income
Realized and unrealized net gains on investments
Interest on debt
Block grant - allocation from the Foundation

12,884,442
3,906,686
725,004
5,909,019
(1,354,598)
907,000

10,078
34,720
-

13,785,556
3,143,015
679,256
9,524,892
(944,200)
907,000

6,600
51,893
-

Net nonoperating revenues

22,977,553

44,798

27,095,519

58,493

(564,214)

(26,957)

5,207,788

(13,941)

(Loss) income before other changes in net position
OTHER CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Capital grants and gifts
Other changes to endowments
Changes in allocation for pension payable to
University of California

695,554
886,228

-

598,472
1,484,595

-

191,481

-

237,014

-

Total other changes in net position

1,773,263

-

2,320,081

-

1,209,049

(26,957)

7,527,869

(13,941)

87,351,625

603,900

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET POSITION
NET POSITION, beginning of year as previously reported
Cummulative effect of accounting and reporting changes

NET POSITION, end of year

22

-

-

NET POSITION, beginning of year as adjusted

87,351,625
$

88,560,674

125,264,756
(45,441,000)

603,900
$

576,943

617,841
-

79,823,756
$

87,351,625

617,841
$

603,900

See accompanying notes.

University of California Hastings College of the Law
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Restated)
2017
College
Foundation

2018
College
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and fees (net of all scholarships and grants)
Contributions
Grants and contracts
Events
Payments to vendors
Salaries and benefits
Loans issued to students
Collections of student loans
Foundation awards
Sales - auxiliary enterprises
Expenses - auxiliary enterprises
Loan interest income net of expenses
Other receipts

$

Net cash used by operations
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
State appropriations
Gifts for endowment
Other gifts
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Purchases of capital assets
Amortization of bond premium (discount)
Principal paid on long term debt
Interest (paid) on long-term debt
Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of investments
Interest on investments
Purchase of investments
Net cash provided by investing activities
NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

See accompanying notes.

$

$

24,230,069
2,093,058
(18,150,119)
(35,922,049)
(1,730,727)
3,623,887
8,598,847
(4,222,251)
382,623
684,666

$

4,576,732
(21,408)
(174)
(4,607,640)
-

(61,753)

(20,411,996)

(52,490)

12,795,525
172,796
4,693,686

-

13,700,973
605,743
3,960,473

-

17,662,007

-

18,267,189

-

669,787
(1,920,585)
2,975,723
(2,995,000)
(1,369,389)

-

581,080
(513,058)
4,256
(650,000)
(951,106)

-

(2,639,464)

-

(1,528,828)

-

7,640,282
(46,992)
(2,547,555)

15,792
8,652
-

8,731,922
39,800
(2,416,906)

14,845
4,303
-

5,045,735

24,444

6,354,816

19,148

(37,309)

2,681,181

(33,342)

75,896

13,197,910

109,238

15,879,091
$

4,604,526
(91,448)
(3,065)
(4,571,766)
-

(20,302,938)

(234,660)

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginning of year
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, end of year

21,970,341
1,725,702
(12,262,298)
(37,263,866)
(874,095)
518,923
8,750,366
(4,411,884)
283,577
1,260,296

Foundation

15,644,431

$

38,587

$

15,879,091

$

75,896
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Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended June 30, 2018 and 2017
(Restated)
2017
College
Foundation

2018
College
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO
NET CASH USED BY
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating loss
Depreciation
Allowance for doubtful accounts
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Scholarship expense
Pension expense
Retiree health benefits expense
Perkins loans principal assignments
Perkins loans aceess cash
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable, net
Notes receivable, net
Pledges receivable, net
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deposits
Unearned revenues
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Compensated absences
Net cash used by operations

$

(23,541,767)
2,985,423
(214,289)
25,767
120,000
(2,558,000)
856,000
(577,772)
(3,618,314)

Foundation

$

164,655
3,840,913
1,576,039
(26,977)
229,278
399,407
36,699
$

(20,302,938)

(71,755)
-

$

10,002
-

(21,887,731)
3,032,334
74,144
22,324
90,000
(1,080,000)
1,940,000
-

$

(381,673)
1,893,161
(1,431,236)
9,683
248,689
(3,053,169)
111,478

$

(61,753)

$

(20,411,996)

(72,434)
19,944
-

$

(52,490)

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Scholarships from assets held by others

$

120,000

$

-

$

90,000

$

-

Gifts in kind

$

25,767

$

-

$

17,392

$

-

Perkins loans principal assignments

$

577,772

$

-

$

17,392

$

-

COMPONENTS OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Current, cash and cash equivalents
Current, restricted cash and cash equivalents
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents, end of year
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12,059,899
3,584,532
$

15,644,431

38,587
$

38,587

11,453,177
4,425,914
$

15,879,091

75,896
$

75,896

See accompanying notes.

University of California Hastings College of the Law
Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 1 – ORGANIZATION
University of California, Hastings College of the Law (the “College” or “UC Hastings”) was established as the law
department of the University of California in 1878. The College, established by the California Legislature with its
own Board of Directors, has operated independently of the Board of Regents of the University of California since
its founding. The Board of Regents possesses degree-granting authority, but all other aspects of the College are
under control of the College's Board of Directors. The College is a charter member of the Association of American
Law Schools and is fully accredited by the American Bar Association. The College is also accredited by the Western
Association of Schools and Colleges (“WASC”).
The UC Hastings Foundation (the “Foundation”), formerly known as the 1066 Foundation, was established in 1971
by a group of alumni in order to provide private sources of funds to allow academic programs to grow and to create
unique opportunities exclusively at Hastings.

NOTE 2 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of accounting – The financial statements of the College and the Foundation have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, including all applicable
effective statements as promulgated by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”).
The College and the Foundation consider assets to be current that can reasonably be expected, as part of their
normal business operations, to be converted to cash and be available for liquidation of current liabilities within
twelve-months of the date of the Statement of Net Position. Liabilities that reasonably can be expected, as part of
the College’s and Foundation’s normal business operations, to be liquidated within twelve-months of the date of the
Statement of Net Position are considered to be current. All other assets and liabilities are considered to be noncurrent; with the exception of those amounts that are required to be reported as deferred outflows or inflows of
resources.
The College and the Foundation follow GASB Statements No. 63 and No. 65 which provides guidance for reporting
deferred outflows of resources, deferred inflows of resources, and net position in a statement of financial position
and related disclosures. The standard defines deferred outflows or inflows of resources as transactions that result
in the consumption or acquisition of net position in one period that are applicable to future periods.
GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations Are Component Units, is further clarified by
GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus, and clarifies the concept of what a major
component unit is. Major component units are determined based on the nature and significance of their relationship
to the primary government. This determination would generally be based on any of the following factors: (a) the
services provided by the component unit to the citizenry are such that separate reporting as a major component
unit is considered to be essential to financial statement users, (b) there are significant transactions with the primary
government, or (c) there is a significant financial benefit or burden relationship with the primary government. The
GASB standards require the College's legally separate, tax-exempt, affiliated campus foundation to be considered
a component unit of the College and presented discretely in the College's financial statements due to the nature
and significance of the Foundation's relationship with the College.
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GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions,
was implement by the College as of July 1, 2017. This Statement revises existing standards for measuring and
reporting retiree health benefits provide by the College to its employees. This Statement requires recognition of a
liability equal to the net retiree health benefits liability, which is measured as the total retiree health benefits liability,
less the amount of the University of California Retiree Health Benefit Trust (“UCRHBT”) fiduciary net position. The
total retiree health benefits liability is determined based upon discounting projected benefit payments based on
claims costs, the benefit terms and legal agreements existing at the UCRHBT’s fiscal year end. Projected benefit
payments are required to be discounted using a single rate that reflects the expected rate of return on investments,
to the extent that plan assets are available to pay benefits, and a tax-exempt, high-quality municipal bond rate when
plan assets are not available. The Statement requires that most changes in the net retiree health benefits liability
be included in the retiree health benefit expense in the period of change.
The College has adopted Statement No. 75 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and as a result, the financial
statements presented herein have been restated retrospectively as follows:
As Previously Reported

Effect of Adoption of Statement No. 75

As Restated

Statement of Net Position
Deferred outflows of resources
Retiree health benefits liability, net
Total liabilities
Deferred inflows of resources
Unrestricted net position
Total net position

2,091,000

8,727,000

-

40,908,000

10,818,000
40,908,000

64,268,387

40,908,000

105,176,387

5,237,000

15,200,000

20,437,000

14,629,481

(47,381,000)

(32,751,519)

134,732,625

(47,381,000)

87,351,625

(906,000)

4,365,073

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Benefits non-pension
Retiree health benefits
Total operating expenses
Income (loss) from operations

5,271,073
-

2,846,000

2,846,000

56,515,188

1,940,000

58,455,188

(19,947,731)

(1,940,000)

(21,887,731)

Income (loss) before other changes in net position

7,147,788

(1,940,000)

5,207,788

Increase / (decrease) in net position

9,467,869

(1,940,000)

7,527,869

134,732,625

(47,381,000)

87,351,625

Change in net position

Cash and cash equivalents – Cash and cash equivalents consist of demand deposits and pooled cash invested
in the University of California Office of the Treasurer's Short-Term Investment Pool (“STIP”), since such amounts
are readily convertible to known amounts of cash. All cash and cash equivalents are carried at cost, which
approximates fair market value.
Legally restricted cash balances – The College holds legally restricted cash balances totaling $3,584,532 and
$4,425,914 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Restricted cash of $3,556,435 and $4,410,168 for 2018 and
2017, respectively, relates to the Federal Perkins student loan program. The remaining funds of $28,097 and
$15,746 at June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, relate to institutional loan funds. These balances are recorded in
restricted cash and cash equivalents.
Accounts receivable, net – Accounts receivable are $2,492,045 and $2,567,781 as of June 30, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Of these amounts, $1,804,742 and $1,715,825 are due from the State of California (“State”), as of
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, for general appropriations.
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Investments – Investments are reported at fair value. The College’s investments consist of investments in the UC
Regents General Endowment Pool (“GEP”). The basis of determining the fair value of pooled funds or mutual funds
is determined as the number of units held in the pool multiplied by the price per unit share, computed on the last
day of the fiscal year. Securities are generally valued at the last sale price on the last business day of the fiscal
year, as quoted on a recognized exchange or by utilizing an industry standard pricing service, when available.
Securities for which no sale was reported as of the close of the last business day of the fiscal year are valued at the
quoted bid price of a dealer who regularly trades in the security being valued. Investment in non-exchange traded
debt and equity investments are valued using inputs provided by independent pricing services or by broker/dealers
who actively trade in these markets. Certain securities may be valued on the basis of a price provided by a single
source.
Investment transactions are recorded on the date the securities are purchased or sold (trade date). Realized gains
or losses are recorded as the difference between the proceeds from the sale and the average cost of the investment
sold. Dividend income is recorded on the ex-dividend date and interest income is accrued as earned. Gifts of
securities are recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.
Prepaid expenses – Prepaid expenses primarily consist of deposits to secure space for future events.
Pledges – Pledges of private gifts to the Foundation to be received in the future are recorded as pledges receivable
and revenue in the year promised. Endowment pledges are recorded in accordance with GASB Statement No. 33
and are recognized as revenue once the proceeds are received.
The allowance for uncollectible pledges is calculated based on ten percent of all pledge balances in which
scheduled pledge payments are past due for twelve-months. Management’s estimation of the uncollectible pledge
amount is based on past collection experience, current conditions and specific identification of accounts with known
uncertainty.
Capital assets – Land and improvements, buildings and improvements, equipment, and library books and
collections of works of art are stated at cost at the date of acquisition, or fair value at the date of donation in the
case of gifts. Significant additions, replacements, major repairs and renovations are generally capitalized if the cost
exceeds $25,000; equipment and furniture are capitalized if the cost exceeds $5,000 and they have a useful life of
more than one year. Minor renovations are charged to operations, as incurred.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated economic useful lives of the assets.
Estimated economic lives are generally as follows:
Land improvements
Buildings
Building improvements
Furniture and equipment
Computer software
Library books and materials

20 years
50 - 75 years
30 years
5 - 15 years
10 years
15 years

Inexhaustible capital assets such as land, special collections that are protected, preserved and held for public
exhibition, education or research, and intangible assets of indefinite life, are not depreciated.
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Deposits – Deposits include amounts received in advance of being earned for the following: rental of various
College facilities, non-student library usage, and payments from employers who have hired students with federal
work-study grants. Deposits on work-study wages and the library are fully refundable. Deposits are recognized as
revenue when earned.
Unearned revenues – Unearned revenues primarily represent non-refundable enrollment deposits and deposits
related to the on-campus interview program along with revenue invoiced for the new Summer Session program.
Unearned revenues are recognized when earned, generally in the following fiscal year.
Revolving fund advance from the State – The revolving fund advance from the State is an advance on the
College's general appropriation from the State of California. It is expected that the revolving fund advance will be
renewed annually; hence, the entire amount has been classified as a noncurrent liability.
Federal contributions to the Perkins Loan Fund – The noncurrent liability of the federal contributions to the
Perkins loan funds consists of the federal capital contribution net of the principal and interest assigned to the U.S.
Department of Education and the administrative cost allowance. All other activity associated with the Federal
Perkins loan program such as loan repayments and cancellations due to death, disability, and law enforcement
service, is reflected in Restricted, Expendable Net Position Perkins loan funds. A net position balance represents
capital that has not yet been issued as loans to students.
As of July 1, 2017, all institutions of higher education, including the College, may no longer disburse Perkins loans
to graduate students.
Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources – Deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources represent a consumption and acquisition of net position that applies to a future period,
respectively.
Changes in net pension liability not included in pension expense, including proportionate shares of collective
pension expense from the University of California Retirement Plan, are reported as deferred outflows of resources
or deferred inflows of resources related to pensions for the College.
Changes in net retiree health benefits liability not included in retiree health benefits expense, including proportionate
shares of collective retiree health benefits expense from the University of California, are reported as deferred
outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources related to retiree health benefits of the College.
Retiree health benefits liability, net – The University provides retiree health benefits to retired employees of the
College. The University established the UCRHBT to allow certain University locations and affiliates, including the
College, to share the risks, rewards and costs of providing for retiree health benefits and to accumulate funds on a
tax-exempt basis under an arrangement segregated from University assets. Contributions from the College to the
UCRHBT are effectively made to a single-employer health plan administered by the University as a cost-sharing
plan. The College is required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the University.
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Net retiree health benefits liability includes the College’s share of the University’s net retiree health benefits liability
for UCRHBT. The College’s share of net retiree liability, deferred inflows of resources, deferred outflows of
resources and retiree health benefits expense have been determined based upon their proportionate share of the
University of California Retirement Plan (“UCRP”) covered compensation for the fiscal year. The fiduciary net
position and changes in net position of UCRHBT have been measured consistent with the accounting policies used
by the trust. For purposes of measuring UCRHBT’s fiduciary net position, investments are reported at fair value and
benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Pension liability, net – UCRP provides retirement benefits to retired employees of the College. The College is
required to contribute to UCRP at a rate set by The Regents of the University of California (“The Regents”). The
pension liability includes the College's share of the net pension liability for UCRP. The College's share of net pension
liability, deferred inflows of resources, deferred outflows of resources and pension expense have been determined
based upon its proportionate share of covered compensation for the fiscal year. The fiduciary net position and
changes in the fiduciary net position of UCRP have been measured consistent with the accounting policies used by
the plan. For purposes of measuring UCRP's fiduciary net position, investments are reported at fair value and
benefit payments are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Payable to University of California – Additional deposits in UCRP have been made using the University of
California resources to make up the gap between the approved contribution rates and the required contributions
based on the University Regents’ funding policy. These deposits, carried as internal loans by the University, are
being repaid by the College, plus accrued interest, over a 30-year period through a supplemental pension
assessment. The College’s share of the internal loans has been determined based upon its proportionate share of
covered compensation for the fiscal year. Supplemental pension assessments are reported as pension expense by
the College. Additional deposits in UCRP by the University, and changes in the College’s share of the internal loans,
are reported as other changes in net position.
Net position – The College's net position is required to be classified for accounting and reporting purposes into the
following categories:
Net investment in capital assets
This category includes all of the College's capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of bonds or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
improvement of those assets. The portion of the debt attributable to unspent proceeds is excluded from the
calculation, in accordance with GASB Statement No. 34.
Restricted
The College and the Foundation classify assets resulting from transactions with purpose restrictions as
restricted assets until the resources are used for the specific purpose or for as long as the provider requires the
resources to remain intact.
Nonexpendable
Assets subject to externally imposed restrictions that they be maintained in perpetuity by the College and
the Foundation are classified as nonexpendable net position. Such assets include the College and the
Foundation's permanent endowment funds.
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Expendable
Assets whose use by the College and the Foundation are subject to externally-imposed restrictions by
donors, grantors, creditors or laws or regulations of other governments, or imposed by law through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation are classified as expendable net position.
Unrestricted
This category includes assets of the College and the Foundation that are neither restricted nor invested in
capital assets, net of related debt. Unrestricted net position may be designated for specific purposes by the
Board of Directors.
Revenues and expenses – Operating revenues include receipts from student tuition and fees, grants and contracts
for specific operating activities, and sales and services from auxiliary enterprises. Operating expenses incurred in
conducting the programs and services of the College and the Foundation are presented in the statements of
revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets as operating activities.
In accordance with GASB Statement No. 35, certain significant revenues relied upon and budgeted for fundamental
operational support of the core instructional mission of the College and the Foundation are mandated to be recorded
as nonoperating revenues, including State general appropriations, private gifts and investment income.
Nonoperating revenues and expenses include State general appropriations (for the support of College operating
expenses), private gifts for other than capital purposes, investment income, realized and net unrealized gains or
losses on investments and interest expense. All grants expended by the Foundation are reflected by the College
as either noncapital or capital gifts, or gifts for endowment.
Other changes in net assets include State capital appropriations, gifts for capital funds for specified purposes and
gifts of endowments.
Student tuition and fees – All of the student tuition and fees provide for current operations of the College. Certain
waivers of the student tuition and fees considered to be scholarship and financial aid grant allowances (i.e., tuition
remission) are recorded as an offset to revenue. Tuition and fee revenue is recognized in the fall, spring, and
summer semesters of each year.
Scholarship allowances – The College recognizes certain financial aid allowances (e.g., UC Hastings grants) and
enrollment fee waivers as the difference between the stated charge for tuition and fees and the amount that is paid
by the student, as well as third parties making payments on behalf of the student. Payments of financial aid and
scholarships made directly to students from private gifts, donations, and endowment income are classified as
scholarship and fellowship expenses.
State appropriations – The State of California provides appropriations to the College on an annual basis. State
educational appropriations for the general support of the College are recognized as nonoperating revenue, however
related expenses incurred to support either educational operations or other specific operating purposes are
designated as operating expenses. State appropriations for capital projects are recorded as revenue under other
changes in net assets when the related expenditures are incurred.
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Use of estimates – The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
New accounting pronouncements adopted or under consideration –
In March 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 81, Irrevocable Split-Interest Agreements, (“GASB 81”). The objective
of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting for irrevocable split-interest agreements by
providing recognition and measurement guidance for situations in which a government is a beneficiary of the
agreement. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2016. Implementation of GASB 81 has no impact to the financial statements.
In November 2016, GASB issued Statement No. 83, Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This Statement
establishes criteria for determining the timing and pattern of recognition of a liability and a corresponding deferred
outflow of resources for AROs, which are legally enforceable liabilities associated with the retirement of tangible
capital assets. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2018.
The College is analyzing the effects of the adoption of GASB 83.
In March 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 85, Omnibus 2017, (“GASB 85”) to enhance consistency in the
application of government accounting and financial reporting standards. This Statement is effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2017. Implementation of GASB 85 had no impact to the financial statements.
In June 2017, GASB issued Statement No. 87, Leases. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial reporting for leases by
governments. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. The College is
analyzing the effects of the adoption of GASB 87.
In March 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 88, Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including Direct Borrowings
and Direct Placements. The objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in the information that is disclosed
in notes to government financial statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements, and
to provide financial statement users with additional essential information about debt. The Statement requires entities
to disclose additional essential debt-related information for all types of debt, including: amounts of unused lines of
credit, assets pledged as collateral for debt, and terms specified in debt agreements related to significant: (a) events
of default with finance-related consequences, (b) termination events with finance-related consequences, and (c)
subjective acceleration clauses. The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting periods beginning
after June 15, 2018. The College is analyzing the effects of the adoption of GASB 88.
In June 2018, GASB issued Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period. The objectives of the Statement are to enhance the relevance and comparability of information
about capital assets and the cost of borrowing for a reporting period and to simplify accounting for interest cost
incurred before the end of a construction period. The Statement requires that interest cost incurred before the end
of a construction period be recognized as an expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial
statements that are prepared using the economic resources measurement focus. The requirements of this
Statement should be applied prospectively and are effective for reporting periods beginning after December 15,
2019. The College is analyzing the effects of the adoption of GASB 89.
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NOTE 3 – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and cash equivalents at June 30, 2018 and 2017, consist of the following:
2018

2017

College

College

Foundation

Foundation

Cash in banks and on hand
Pooled cash included in STIP

$

11,489,607
4,154,824

$

38,587

$

10,884,581
4,994,510

$

75,896

Total cash and cash equivalents

$

15,644,431

$

38,587

$

15,879,091

$

75,896

The College and the Foundation follow the practice of pooling cash. The cash and cash equivalents pools allocate
earnings based on the number of units held of the total on a monthly basis. The College and the Foundation utilize
STIP, which is managed by the University of California Office of the Treasurer. STIP consists of money market and
fixed income investments with a maximum maturity of five years. The objective of STIP is to maximize returns
consistent with liquidity and cash flow needs. The College and the Foundation consider STIP to operate as a
demand deposit.
At June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively, the carrying amounts of the College's deposits in banks were $11,489,607
and $10,884,581 and the bank balances were $11,358,430 and $11,281,931.
Of the bank balances for 2018, $250,000 was covered by federal depository insurance and $11,108,430 was
uninsured but collateralized with securities held by a third-party financial institution in accordance with the State of
California Government Code, but not in the College's name.

NOTE 4 – INVESTMENTS
The College and Foundation follow the investment philosophy of the University and invest their excess cash and
long-term investments with the University Office of the Treasurer (“Office of the Treasurer”). Accordingly, all
investments held by the Office of the Treasurer are uninsured and unregistered and are not held in the College's or
Foundation's name.
Fair value is defined in the accounting standards as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Assets and
liabilities reported at fair value are organized into a hierarchy based on the levels of inputs observable in the
marketplace that are used to measure fair value. Inputs are used in applying the various valuation techniques and
take into account the assumptions that market participants use to make valuation decisions. Inputs may include
price information, credit data, liquidity statistics and other factors specific to the financial instrument. Observable
inputs reflect market data obtained from independent sources. In contrast, unobservable inputs reflect the entity’s
assumptions about how market participants would value the financial instrument. A financial instrument’s level within
the fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement.
The following describes the hierarchy of inputs used to measure fair value and the primary valuation methodologies
used for financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis:
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Level 1 – Prices based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible for identical assets
or liabilities are classified as Level 1. Level 1 investments include equity securities commingled funds
(exchange traded funds and mutual funds) and other publicly traded securities.
Level 2 – Quoted prices in the markets that are not considered to be active, dealer quotations or alternative
pricing sources for similar assets or liabilities for which all significant inputs are observable, either
directly or indirectly are classified as Level 2 investments include fixed or variable-income securities,
commingled funds (institutional funds not listed in active markets) and other assets that are valued
using market information.
Level 3 – Investments classified as Level 3 have significant unobservable inputs, as they trade infrequently or
not at all. The inputs into the determination of fair value of these investments are based upon the
best information in the circumstance and may require significant management judgment.
Net Asset Value (NAV) – Investments whose fair value is measured at NAV are excluded from the fair value
hierarchy. Investments in non-governmental entities that do not have readily determinable fair value may be valued
at NAV. Investments measured at NAV include commingled balanced funds.
Not leveled – Cash and cash equivalents are not measured at fair value and, thus, are not subject to the fair value
disclosure requirements.
The University managed commingled funds (UC pooled funds) serve as the core investment vehicle for the College
and the Foundation.
GEP – An investment pool in which a large number of individual endowments participate in order to benefit from
diversification and economies of scales. GEP is a balanced portfolio of equities, fixed income securities, and
alternative investments. The primary goal is to maximize long-term total return, growth of principal and a growing
payout stream to ensure that future funding for endowment-supported activities can be maintained. Where donor
agreements place constraints on allowable investments, assets associated with endowments are invested in
accordance with the terms of the agreements. The College’s investment in GEP is classified as commingled funds.
GEP is considered to be an external investment pool from the College’s perspective.
The fair value of the College’s and the Foundation's share in the GEP's investments – all measured at NAV at
June 30, 2018 and 2017, are as follows:
2018

2017

College
Total investments

$

73,879,288

Foundation
$

471,304

College
$

72,297,073

Foundation
$

450,950
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Risk profile of the investments – Financial instruments that potentially subject the College and the Foundation to
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of investments with the Office of the Treasurer, which may invest in
cash equivalents, U.S. Government and federal agency obligations, common stocks, and corporate debt securities;
the remainder of the Office of the Treasurer's portfolio is diversified and issuers of the securities are dispersed
throughout many industries and geographies. There are many factors that can affect the value of investments.
Some, such as custodial credit risk, concentration of credit risk and foreign currency risk may affect both equity and
fixed income securities. Equity securities respond to such factors as economic conditions, individual company
earnings performance and market liquidity, while fixed income securities are particularly sensitive to credit risks and
changes in interest rates.
Credit risk – Fixed income securities are subject to credit risk, which is the chance that a bond issuer will fail to
pay interest or principal in a timely manner, or that negative perceptions of the issuer's ability to make these
payments will cause security prices to decline. These circumstances may arise due to a variety of factors such as
financial weakness, bankruptcy, litigation and/or adverse political developments. Certain fixed income securities,
primarily obligations of the U.S. government or those explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. government, are considered
to have minimal credit risk.
The Office of the Treasurer recognizes that credit risk is appropriate in balanced investment pools such as GEP, by
virtue of the benchmark chosen for the fixed-income portion of that pool. That fixed-income benchmark, the
Barclay’s Capital US Aggregate Bond Index is comprised of approximately 34.9 percent corporate bonds and
22.2 percent mortgage/asset-backed securities, all of which carry some degree of credit risk. The remaining
42.9 percent are government-issued bonds. Credit risk in the GEP is managed primarily by diversifying across
issuers and portfolio guidelines mandate that no more than 10 percent of the market value of fixed income may be
invested in issues with credit rating below investment grade. Further, the weighted-average credit rating must be
“A” or higher.
Interest rate risk – Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of fixed income securities will decline because of
changing interest rates. The prices of fixed income securities with a longer time to maturity, measured by effective
duration, tend to be more sensitive to changes in interest rates and, therefore, more volatile than those with shorter
durations. Effective duration is the approximate change in price of a security resulting from a 100 basis point
(1 percentage point) change in the level of interest rates. It is not a measure of time.
The Office of the Treasurer portfolio guidelines for the fixed and variable income portion of GEP limit weightedaverage effective duration to plus or minus 20 percent of the effective duration of the benchmark (Barclay’s Capital
US Aggregate Index). This constrains the potential price movement due to interest rate changes of the portfolio to
be similar to that of the benchmark. The effective durations of total investments of the College and the Foundation
in the office of the Treasurer's GEP as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, were 5.1 and 5.01 months, respectively.
Foreign currency risk – The Office of the Treasurer's strategic asset allocation policy for GEP includes an
allocation to non U.S. equities and nondollar denominated bonds. The benchmark for these investments is not
hedged; therefore, foreign currency risk is an essential part of the investment strategy. Portfolio guidelines for U.S.
investment-grade fixed income securities also allow exposure to non U.S. dollar denominated bonds up to
10 percent of total the portfolio market value.
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Exposure to foreign currency risk from these securities is permitted and it may be fully or partially hedged using
forward foreign currency exchange contracts. Under the investment policies, such instruments are not permitted for
speculative use or to create leverage. The portions of total investments of the College and the Foundation in the
Office of the Treasurer's GEP associated with various foreign currency denominations as of June 30, 2018 and
2017, were $20,990,343 and $24,707,664, respectively.

NOTE 5 – NOTES RECEIVABLE
Notes receivable of the College at June 30, 2018 and 2017, consists of the following:

2018
Federal Perkins and NDSL loans
O'Neill loans
Hastings loans
California Bar preparation loans
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts

2017

$

8,882,219
391,439
346,777
188,640
(311,612)

$

12,984,794
492,689
374,561
188,380
(702,047)

$

9,497,463

$

13,338,377

All loans, except the California Bar Preparation loans, are payable over approximately ten years following College
attendance. Federal Perkins loans accrue interest at five percent. O'Neill loans made prior to July 1, 1996, are
interest-free; and loans made July 1, 1996, or after accrue interest at five percent. Funding for the O'Neill Loan
program is made by a private gift to the College. O'Neill loans are advanced to students who resided in Sacramento
County. During 2015, the College transitioned the O'Neil loan fund to a scholarship fund. Therefore, there will be
no new loans given out from this fund after fiscal year 2015. Hastings loans are also funded by private gifts to the
College and accrue interest at five percent.
The allowance for doubtful accounts is based upon five percent of the outstanding balance of all loans except in
fiscal year 2018 when bad debt for Federal Perkins loans was lowered to three percent. This decrease is due to the
fact that all Federal Perkins loans were assigned to the Department of Education as of June 30, 2018 as part of the
College’s liquidation of the Federal Perkins loan portfolio. As of June 30, 2018, the portfolio remains in the process
of liquidation. Management's estimation of the collectible notes receivable amount is based on past collection
experience, current conditions, and specific identification of accounts with known uncertainty.

NOTE 6 – ASSETS HELD BY OTHERS
Assets held by others represent the College's right to the perpetual income streams resulting from two irrevocable
and perpetual trusts held by external trustees. The College's right to the income from these trusts is valued at the
market value of the investments held by the trusts. One trust is administered by Deutsche Bank and the other by
The Regents of the University of California (“UC”). Investment income of $120,000 and $90,000 for 2018 and 2017,
respectively, was distributed by the external trustees to recipients of the Tony Patino Fellowship.

35

University of California Hastings College of the Law
Notes to Financial Statements

In addition, UC holds seven endowments (not pursuant to irrevocable agreements) for which income is allocated to
the College and recorded in the accompanying financial statements as other changes in net position, gifts and other
changes to endowment. The endowment payout amount received from these endowments in fiscal 2018 and 2017
was $299,759 and $228,539, respectively. Income generated from three of these endowments has been designated
by the donor to be distributed exclusively to the College’s students. For the remaining four, the income allocated to
the College conforms to the donors' intent that endowment income be used for financial support of University of
California law students. The market value of the College’s share of the remaining four endowments as of June 30,
2018 and 2017, is $905,964 and $863,284, respectively. These four endowments are not reflected on the College's
statements of net position. Assets held by others also include $35,000 held as an interest account in Citizens
Business Bank for workers' compensation payments.
The following table summarizes the assets held by others reported at fair value within the fair value hierarchy as of
June 30, 2018:

Assets Held by Others
Tony Patino Memorial Fellowship Trust:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Fixed Income
Equities
Equity Investment Funds
Alternative Investments

Total
$

Patino Subtotal

Workers' Compensation
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$

3,700,475

Endowments Held by UC

Total Assets Held by Others

40,759
675,770
1,794,637
927,093
262,216

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets
(Level 1)

$

55,449
1,794,637
927,093
262,216

Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)
$

3,039,395

620,321
-

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Net Asset Value
(NAV)

$

$

620,321

-

5,537,380

-

-

-

35,000

-

-

-

9,272,855

$

3,039,395

$

620,321

$

-

-

Not Leveled
$

-

40,759

5,537,380

-

$

5,537,380

40,759
-

35,000
$

75,759
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The following table summarizes the assets held by others reported at fair value within the fair value hierarchy as of
June 30, 2017:

Assets Held by Others
Tony Patino Memorial Fellowship Trust:
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Fixed Income
Equities
Equity Investment Funds
Alternative Investments

Total

$

Patino Subtotal

(17,550)
815,299
1,588,853
898,413
262,650

$

3,547,665

Beneficial Interest in
Charitable Remainder Trust (CRT)
Endowments Held by UC

$

110,867
1,588,853
898,413
262,650

Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

$

2,860,783

704,432
-

Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

Net Asset Value
(NAV)

$

$

704,432

-

Not Leveled

-

-

$

-

(17,550)
(17,550)

144,412

-

-

-

144,412

-

5,276,517

-

-

-

5,276,517

-

35,000

-

-

-

Workers' Compensation
Total Assets Held by Others

Quoted Prices
in Active
Markets
(Level 1)

9,003,594

$

2,860,783

$

704,432

$

$

-

35,000

5,420,929

$

17,450

NOTE 7 – CAPITAL ASSETS
The activities related to capital assets during fiscal 2018 for the College are summarized below:
2017
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Works of art
Intangible assets

$

Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Building improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Computer software
Library books and materials
Total capital assets, being depreciated

5,088,532
2,117,575
421,309
115,920

Additions
$

2,423,935
-

Disposals
$

(55,361)
-

2018
$

5,088,532
4,486,149
421,309
115,920

7,743,336

2,423,935

(55,361)

10,111,910

84,402,917
34,097,260
5,994,614
935,072
2,832,808

25,806
91,972
-

(26,779)
-

84,402,917
34,123,066
6,059,807
935,072
2,832,808

128,262,671

117,778

(26,779)

128,353,670

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Building improvements
Equipment, furniture, and fixtures
Computer software
Library books and materials

(26,852,771)
(16,147,752)
(4,896,754)
(685,754)
(1,516,114)

(1,332,141)
(1,179,261)
(228,229)
(54,182)
(191,610)

1,011
-

(28,184,912)
(17,327,013)
(5,123,972)
(739,936)
(1,707,724)

Total accumulated depreciation

(50,099,145)

(2,985,423)

1,011

(53,083,557)

78,163,526

(2,867,645)

(25,768)

75,270,113

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Capital assets, net

$

85,906,862

$

(443,710)

$

(81,129)

$

85,382,023
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The activities related to capital assets during fiscal 2017 for the College are summarized below:
2016
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress
Works of art
Intangible assets

$

Total capital assets, not being depreciated
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Building improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Computer software
Library books and materials
Total capital assets, being depreciated

5,088,532
1,919,329
421,309
115,920

Additions

Disposals

475,337
-

$

$

2017

(277,091)
-

$

5,088,532
2,117,575
421,309
115,920

7,545,090

475,337

(277,091)

7,743,336

84,402,917
33,820,169
6,035,262
935,072
11,699,416

277,091
55,113
-

(95,761)
(8,866,608)

84,402,917
34,097,260
5,994,614
935,072
2,832,808

136,892,836

332,204

(8,962,369)

128,262,671

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings
Building improvements
Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Software
Library books

(25,520,630)
(14,975,848)
(4,702,732)
(608,100)
(10,188,408)

(1,332,141)
(1,171,904)
(256,321)
(77,654)
(194,314)

62,299
8,866,608

(26,852,771)
(16,147,752)
(4,896,754)
(685,754)
(1,516,114)

Total accumulated depreciation

(55,995,718)

(3,032,334)

8,928,907

(50,099,145)

80,897,118

(2,700,130)

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net
Capital assets, net

$

88,442,208

$

(33,462)

(2,224,793)

$

78,163,526

(310,553)

$

85,906,862

NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt of the College consists of the following at June 30, 2018 and 2017:
Hastings College of the Law Refunding Bonds, Series 2017, due serially to 2037
with interest from 2.00% to 5.00% (average coupon rate of 4.63%)

$

Hastings College of the Law Series 2008 Bonds, due serially to 2037,
with interest from 3.625% to 5.00% (average coupon rate of 4.36%)

$

Unamortized bond premium (discount)
Total bonds payable

2018

2017

17,610,000

-

$

$

2,849,244
$

20,459,244

-

20,605,000
(126,480)

$

20,478,520

The College issued the Series 2008 Bonds for $25,080,000 for the construction of the UC Hastings Parking Garage,
and to reimburse the College for associated development costs. Located at 376 Larkin Street in San Francisco,
California, the multi-level structure contains 395 parking stalls, and 12,612 square feet of ground-level retail space.
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In December 2017, the Series 2008 Bonds were refunded with Series 2017 Refunding Bonds. The advance
refunding resulted in a difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt of
$9,995,000 million. This difference is reported in the accompanying financial statements as a deduction from bonds
payable. The College completed the advance refunding to reduce its total debt service payments over the next 19
years by $3,509,604 million and to obtain an economic gain (difference between the present values of the old and
new debt service payments) of $2,064,415 million.
The activity with respect to the College's debt for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, is as follows:
2018
Balance as of June 30, 2017

$

Additions - par amount of Series 2017 Bonds
Unamortized bond premium
Par amount of refunded bonds (Series 2008 Bonds)

20,478,520
17,610,000
2,975,724
(20,605,000)

Balance as of June 30, 2018

$

20,459,244

Current loan payable
Noncurrent loan payable

$

550,000
19,909,244

Balance as of June 30, 2018

$

20,459,244
2017

Balance as of June 30, 2016

$

Unamortized bond discount
Principal payments in fiscal year 2017

21,255,000
(126,480)
(650,000)

Balance as of June 30, 2017

$

20,478,520

Current bond payable
Noncurrent bond payable

$

675,000
19,803,520

Balance as of June 30, 2017

$

20,478,520

Principal and interest payments required to be made for each of the next five fiscal years and thereafter are
summarized as follows:
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Principal
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
2029-2033
2034-2037

Interest

Total

$

550,000
565,000
580,000
600,000
710,000
4,120,000
5,250,000
5,235,000

$

840,900
829,900
812,950
789,750
765,750
3,259,250
2,121,750
670,250

$

1,390,900
1,394,900
1,392,950
1,389,750
1,475,750
7,379,250
7,371,750
5,905,250

$

17,610,000

$

10,090,500

$

27,700,500

NOTE 9 – ENDOWMENTS
The endowments held by the College at June 30, 2018, are as follows:
Restricted Net Position
Nonexpendable
Expendable

Unrestricted
Net Position

Total

Endowments
Funds functioning as endowments
Endowment assets held by others

$

14,619,842
9,237,855

$

11,584,842
-

$

7,983,392
-

$

26,204,684
7,983,392
9,237,855

College's endowments

$

23,857,697

$

11,584,842

$

7,983,392

$

43,425,931

The endowments held by the College at June 30, 2017, are as follows:
Restricted Net Position
Nonexpendable
Expendable

Unrestricted
Net Position

Total

Endowments
Funds functioning as endowments
Endowment assets held by others

$

14,425,122
8,824,182

$

10,470,697
-

$

7,643,551
-

$

24,895,819
7,643,551
8,824,182

College's endowments

$

23,249,304

$

10,470,697

$

7,643,551

$

41,363,552

Endowments held by the Foundation at June 30, 2018 and 2017, are as follows:

Foundation's endowments
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2018
Restricted Net Position
Nonexpendable
Expendable

2017
Restricted Net Position
Nonexpendable
Expendable

$

$

178,755

$

288,516

178,755

$

268,504
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The College's endowment income distribution policies are designed to preserve the value of the endowment in real
terms (after inflation) and to generate a predictable stream of spendable income. Endowment investments are
managed to achieve a maximum long-term total return. As a result of this emphasis on total return, the portion of
the annual income distribution funded by dividend and interest income and by capital gains may vary significantly
from year to year.
Under provisions of California law, the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) allows
for investment income, as well as a portion of realized and unrealized gains, to be expended for the operational
requirements of the College's programs. The College utilizes a total return spending policy governing the payout on
endowed funds. Total return policies permit the expenditure of both current income and appreciation. The portion
of investment returns earned on endowments held by the College and distributed each year to support current
operations is based upon a payout rate that is approved by the Board of Directors. The payout rate for both 2018
and 2017 was 4.35 percent, calculated on the 12-quarter average market value of endowed funds. Endowment
income is available to meet spending needs, subject to donor terms and conditions and the approval of the Board.
Net appreciation on investments of donor-restricted endowments is reflected in the above tables as restricted
expendable net position.
Generally, the College's practice is to spend restricted resources first when an expense is incurred for purposes for
which both restricted and unrestricted net position is available. In addition, Endowment Net Position reflects not
only endowment investments but also cash gifted to endowments and not yet invested.
The total distribution from endowments was $1,239,231 and $1,159,946 for the years ended June 30, 2018 and
2017, respectively. From that distribution, $1,222,057 and $1,143,802 was distributed to the College, and $17,174
and $16,144 was distributed to the Foundation, for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

NOTE 10 – DEFERRED OUTFLOWS AND INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
The composition of deferred outflows of resources and June 30 is summarized as follows:
2018
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Retiree health benefits liability, net
Pension liability, net

$

Loss on defeasance of debt

7,044,000
1,628,000

2017
$

119,746

8,727,000
2,091,000
-

Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

$

8,791,746

$

10,818,000

Deferred Inflows of resources
Retiree health benefits liability, net
Pension liability, net

$

17,677,000
3,803,000

$

15,200,000
5,237,000

Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

$

21,480,000

$

20,437,000
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NOTE 11 – RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS
The University administers single-employer health and welfare plans to provide health and welfare benefits,
primarily medical, dental and vision, to eligible retirees (and their eligible family members) of the University of
California and its affiliates through UCRHBT. The Regents has the authority to establish and amend the plan.
Additional information on the retiree health plans can be obtained from the 2017-2018 annual reports of the
University of California. The contribution requirements of the eligible retirees and the participating University
locations, such as the College, are established and may be amended by the University. Membership in UCRP is
required to become eligible for retiree health benefits. Contributions toward benefits are shared with the retiree. The
University determines the employer’s contribution. Retirees are required to pay the difference between the
employer’s contribution and the full cost of the health insurance. Retirees who are employed by the University after
July 1, 2013, and retire at the age of 56 or older, become eligible for a percentage of the University’s contribution
based on age and years for service. Retirees are eligible for the maximum University contribution at age 65 with 20
or more years of service. Retirees employed by the University prior to 1990 and not rehired after that date are
eligible of the University’s maximum contribution if they retire before age 55 and have at least 10 years of service,
or if they retire at age 55 or later and have at least 5 years of service. Retirees employed by the University after
1989 are subject graduated eligibility provisions that generally require 10 years of service before becoming eligible
for 50 percent of the maximum University contribution, increasing to 100 percent after 20 years of service.
Contributions – The College’s contributions toward retiree health benefits, at rates determined by the University,
are made to UCRHBT. The University receives retiree health contributions from retirees that are deducted from
their UCRP benefit payments. The University also remits these retiree contributions to UCRHBT. The University
acts as a third-party administrator on behalf of UCRHBT and pays health care insurers and administrators amount
currently due under the University’s retiree health benefit plans for retirees who previously worked at the College.
UCRHBT reimburses the University for these amounts.
Participating University locations, such as the College, are required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by
the University. The contribution requirements are based upon projected pay-as-you-go financing requirements. The
assessment rates were $2.80 and $2.93 per $100 of UCRP covered payroll effective July 1, 2017 and 2016,
respectively.
The College’s contributions for the years ended June 30 were as follows:

2018
Total employer contributions

$

899,000

2017
$

906,000

Net Retiree Health Benefits Liability - The College’s proportionate share of the net retiree health benefits liability
as of June 30 is as follows:
2018
2017
Proportion of the net retiree health benefits liability
0.2%
0.2%
Proportionate share of net retiree health benefits liability
$ 37,604,000
$ 40,908,000
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The College’s net retiree health benefits liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017 and calculated using
the plan net position valued as of the measurement date and total retiree health benefits liability based upon rolling
forward the results of the actuarial valuations as of July 1, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Actuarial valuations
represent a long-term perspective and involve estimates of the value of reported benefits and assumptions about
the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Significant actuarial methods and assumptions used to
calculate the College’s net retiree health benefits liability were:

2018
Discount rate
3.87%
Inflation
3.00%
Investment rate of return
3.00%
Health care cost trend rates Initially ranges from 5.0 to 9.3 decreasing to
an ultimate rate of 5.0 for 2033 and later years

2017
3.58%
3.00%
3.00%
Initially ranges from 5.0 to 9.5 decreasing to
an ultimate rate of 5.0 for 2032 and later years

Actuarial assumptions are subject to periodic revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The actuarial assumptions are based upon results of an experience study
conducted for the period of July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2014. For pre-retirement mortality rates, the RP-2014
White Collar Employee Mortality Tables (separate table for males and females) projected with the two-dimensional
MP-2014 projection scale to 2029 were used. For post-retirement, healthy mortality rates are based on the RP2014 White Collar Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale
to 2029, and with ages then set forward one year. For disabled members, rates are based on the RP-2014 Disabled
Retiree Mortality Table projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029, and with ages then
set back one year for males and set forward five years for females.
Sensitivity of Net Retiree Health Benefits Liability to the Health Care Cost Trend Rate - The following presents
the June 30, 2018 net retiree health benefits liability of the College calculated using the June 30, 2018 health care
cost trend rate assumption with initial trend ranging from 5.0 percent to 9.3 percent grading down to an ultimate
trend of 5.0 percent over 15 years, as well as what the net retiree health benefits liability would be if it were calculated
using a health care cost trend rate different than the current assumption:
2018
Current Trend
(5.0% to 9.3%)
Decreasing to
(5%)

1% Decrease
(4.0% to 8.3%)
Decreasing to
(4%)
$

32,195,000

$

37,604,000

1% Increase
(6.0% to 10.3%)
Decreasing to
(6%)
$

45,196,000

2017
Current Trend
(5.0% to 9.5%)
Decreasing to
(5%)

1% Decrease
(4.0% to 8.5%)
Decreasing to
(4%)
$

34,767,000

$

40,908,000

1% Increase
(6.0% to 10.5%)
Decreasing to
(6%)
$

49,399,000

Discount Rate – The discount rate used to estimate the net retiree health benefits liability as of June 30, 2018 and
2017 was 3.87 percent and 3.58 percent, respectively. The discount rate was based on the Bond Buyer 20-Bond
General Obligation index since UCHRBT plan assets are not sufficient to make benefit payments.
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Sensitivity of the net pension liability to the discount rate assumption – The following presents the June 30,
2018 net pension liability of the College calculated using the June 30, 2018 discount rate assumption of 3.87 as
well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discounted rate different than the current
assumption:

2018
Current Trend
(3.87%)

1% Decrease
(2.87%)
$

44,892,000

$

37,604,000

1% Increase
(4.87%)

2017
1% Decrease Current Trend
(2.58%)
(3.58%)

1% Increase
(4.58%)

$ 32,300,000

$ 49,014,000

$ 40,908,000

$ 34,912,000

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources – Deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources for retiree health benefits were related to the following sources as of the years ended
June 30:

2018

2017

Deferred Outflows of Resources
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on plan
investments

6,882,000
8,000

8,534,000
7,000

Difference between expected and actual experience
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

$

154,000
7,044,000

$

186,000
8,727,000

$

6,347,000

$

4,730,000

Deferred Inflows of resources
Changes in proportion and differences between College's
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Difference between expected and actual experience
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

6,635,000
4,695,000
$

17,677,000

7,247,000
3,223,000
$

15,200,000

The net amount of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to retiree health benefits
that will be recognized in retiree health benefit expense during the years ending June 30 is as follows:
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2018
Year Ended June 30:
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter
Total

$

$

(1,358,000)
(1,359,000)
(1,360,000)
(1,361,000)
(1,361,000)
(3,834,000)
(10,633,000)

NOTE 12 – RETIREMENT BENEFITS
Substantially all full-time employees of the College participate in the University of California Retirement System
(“UCRS”) that is administered by the University. The UCRS consists of the University of California Retirement Plan
(“UCRP”), a cost-sharing defined benefit pension plan, and the University of California Retirement Savings Program
(“UCRSP”) that includes four defined contribution pension plans with several investment portfolios generally funded
with employee nonelective and elective contributions. The Regents have the authority to establish and amend the
benefit plans. Additional information on the retirement plans can be obtained from the 2017 - 2018 annual reports
for the University of California Retirement System.
UCRP provides lifetime retirement income, disability protection, death benefits, and post-retirement and preretirement survivor benefits to eligible employees of the University, and its affiliates. Membership is required in
UCRP for all employees appointed to work at least 50 percent time for one year or more of for an indefinite period
or for a definite period of a year or more. An employee may also become eligible by completing 1,000 hours within
a 12-month period. Generally, five years of service are required for entitlement to plan benefits. The amount of
pension benefit is determined under the basic formula of covered compensation times age factor times years of
service credit. The maximum monthly benefit cannot exceed 100 percent of the employee's highest average plan
compensation over a 36-month period, subject to certain limits imposed under the Internal Revenue Code. Annual
cost-of-living adjustments (“COLAs”) are made to monthly benefits accordingly to a specified formula based on the
Consumer Price Index. Ad hoc COLAs may be granted subject to funding availability.
Contributions – Contributions to the UCRP may be made by the College and the employees. The rates for
contributions as a percentage of payroll are determined annually pursuant to The Regents' funding policy and based
upon recommendations of the consulting actuary. The Regents’ determine the portion of the total contribution to be
made by the College and by the employees. Employee contributions by represented employees are subject to
collective bargaining agreements. Effective July 1, 2015, employee member contributions range from 7.0 percent
to 9.0 percent. The College pays a uniform contribution rate of 14.0 percent of covered payroll on behalf of UCRP
members. Employee contributions to UCRP are accounted for separately and currently accrue interest at 6.0
percent annually. Upon termination, members may elect a refund of their contributions plus accumulated interest;
vested terminated members who are eligible to retire may also elect monthly retirement income or lump sum equal
to the present value of their accrued benefits.
Contributions were as follows during the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017:
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2018

2017

College
Employee

$

4,379,000
1,922,000

$

4,387,000
1,859,000

Total contributions

$

6,301,000

$

6,246,000

Additional deposits were made by the University to UCRP of $391.8 and $481.0 million for the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The College’s reported pension expense and an increase in the pension
payable to the University for its portion of these additional deposits based upon its proportionate share of covered
compensation for the years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017, were $810,000 and $1,040,000, respectively.
Net pension liability – College's proportionate share of the net pension liability for UCRP as of June 30, 2018 and
2017, is as follows:

2018
Proportion of the net pension liability
Proportionate share of net pension liability

$

0.2%
19,534,000

2017

$

0.2%
21,931,000

College's net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, and calculated using the plan net
position valued as of the measurement date and total pension liability determined based upon rolling forward the
total pension liability from the results of the actuarial valuations as of July 1, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
Actuarial valuations represented a long-term perspective and involve estimates of the value of reported benefits
and assumptions about the probability of certain events occurring far into the future. The College's net pension
liability was calculated using the following methods and assumptions:

Inflation
Salary increase (varying by service, including inflation)
Investment rate of return (net of pension plan investment expense,
including inflation)
COLAs

2018

2017

3.00%
3.75 - 6.15%

3.00%
3.75 - 6.15%

7.25%
2.00%

7.25%
2.00%

Actuarial assumptions are subject to periodic revisions as actual results are compared with past expectations and
new estimates are made about the future. The actuarial assumptions used in 2018 and 2017 were based upon the
results of an experience study conducted for the period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 2014. For pre-retirement
mortality rates, the RP-2014 White Collar Employee Mortality Tables (separate table for males and females)
projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029 were used. For post-retirement, healthy
mortality rates are based on the RP-2014 White Collar Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table projected with the twodimensional MP-2014 projection scale to 2029, and with ages then set forward one year. For disabled members,
rates are based on the RP-2014 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table projected with the two-dimensional MP-2014
projection scale to 2029, and with ages then set back on year for males and set forward five years for females.
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The long-term expected investment rate of return for UCRP was determined in 2015 based on a building-block
method in which expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of inflation) are developed for each major
asset class. These returns are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage, adding expected inflation and subtracting
expected investment expenses and a risk margin. The target allocation and projected arithmetic real rates of return
for each major asset class, after deducting inflation, but before investment expenses, used in the derivation of the
long-term expected investment rate of return assumption are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Target

Long-term
expected real
rate return

U.S. Equity
Developed International Equity
Emerging Market Equity
Core Fixed Income
High Yield Bonds
Emerging Market Debt
TIPS
Real Estate
Private Equity
Absolute Return
Real Assets

28.5%
18.5%
8.0%
12.5%
2.5%
2.5%
4.5%
5.5%
8.0%
6.5%
3.0%

6.08%
6.97%
8.58%
0.82%
2.97%
3.85%
0.43%
4.76%
11.15%
4.15%
4.36%

Total

100%

Discount rates – The discount rate used to estimate the net pension liability as of June 30, 2018 and 2017, was
7.25 percent. To calculate the discount rate, cash flows into and out of UCRP were projected in order to determine
whether UCRP has sufficient cash in future periods for projected benefit payment for current members. For this
purpose, College contributions that are intended to fund benefits of current plan members and their beneficiaries
are included. Projected College and member contributions that are intended to fund the service costs of future plan
members and their beneficiaries, as well as projected contributions of future plan members, are not included. UCRP
was projected to have assets sufficient to make projected benefit payments for current members for all future years.
Sensitivity of the net pension liability to the discount rate assumption – The following presents the June 30,
2018 net pension liability of the College calculated using the June 30, 2018 discount rate assumption of 7.25 percent
as well as what the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discounted rate different than the
current assumption:

1% Decrease
(6.25%)
$

37,421

2018
Current Discount
(7.25%)
$

19,534,000

1% Increase
(8.25%)
$

4,608,000

1% Decrease
(6.25%)
$

39,654,000

2017
Current Discount
(7.25%)

1% Increase
(8.25%)

$ 21,931,000

$ 7,132,000
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Deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources – Deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources for pensions were related to the following sources as of June 30, 2018 and 2017:
2017

2018
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Changes in proportion and differences between the College's
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Difference between actual and expected experience
in the Total Pension Liability

$

176,000
947,000

$

388,000

505,000

Total deferred outflows of resources
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Changes in proportion and differences between the College's
contributions and proportionate share of contributions
Changes of assumptions or other inputs
Net excess of actual over projected earnings on pension
plan investments
Difference between expected and actual experience
in the Total Pension Liability

$

1,628,000

$

2,091,000

$

3,241,000
-

$

3,667,000
819,000

$

Total deferred inflows of resources

5,000
1,698,000

447,000

424,000

115,000

327,000

3,803,000

$

5,237,000

Net deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense during the years ending June 30 as follows:

Year Ended June 30,
2019
2020
2021
2022
2023

$

522,000
(196,000)
(2,058,000)
(401,000)
(42,000)

Total

$

(2,175,000)

The UCRSP plans (DC Plan, Supplemental DC Plan, 403(b) Plan, and 457(b) Plan) provide savings incentives and
additional retirement security for all eligible employees. The DC Plan accepts both pre-tax and after-tax employee
contributions. The Supplemental DC Plan accepts employer contributions on behalf of certain qualifying employees.
The 403(b) and 457(b) Plans accept pre-tax employee contributions and the College may also make contributions
on behalf of certain members of management. Benefits from the Plans are based on participants’ mandatory and
voluntary contributions, plus earnings, and are immediately vested.

NOTE 13 – FEDERAL AND STATE INCOME TAXES
As a separate law department of the University of California, the College is an instrument of the State and
accordingly, is not subject to federal or state income taxes, except for taxes on unrelated business income.
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NOTE 14 – CONTINGENCIES
The College receives substantially all of its unrestricted revenue from tuition and fees and State appropriations. The
College tuition and fee schedule is established annually by the Board of Directors. The State legislature establishes
the annual appropriation to the College. The appropriation may increase or decrease during the year due to State
budget changes.
Substantial amounts are received and expended by the College under federal and state grants and contracts, and
are subject to audit by cognizant governmental agencies. This funding relates primarily to student financial
assistance and related programs. College management believes that liabilities, if any, arising from such audits will
not have a significant effect on the College's financial condition or results of operations.

NOTE 15 – INSURANCE
The College is exposed to various risks of loss including general liability, property and casualty, workers'
compensation, employee health, and legal defense. The College purchases insurance through commercial and risk
retention insurance companies with various ranges of deductibles depending on the policy type. Settled claims have
not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The College continues to self-insure its workers'
compensation program.

NOTE 16 – LITIGATION
From time to time, the College is subject to various claims and legal proceedings covering a range of matters that
arise in the ordinary course of its business activities. In the opinion of management, although the outcome of any
legal proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, the ultimate liability of the College in connection with its legal
proceedings is expected not to have a material adverse effect on the College's financial position and activities.

NOTE 17 – SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Developer Selection – Academic Village
In September 2018, the Master Developer for the College’s campus housing and academic and mixed use
development projects was chosen with the selection of a development team lead by Greystar/EdR. This project
includes the demolition of the existing academic building at 198 McAllister and 50 Hyde Street to be replaced by a
new campus housing complex and the renovation of the existing student housing facility at 100 McAllister. Lease
negotiations are expected to conclude in 2019. Construction of the new facility at 198 McAllister and 50 Hyde Street
is forecasted to begin in 2020 with completion in 2022.
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Supplementary Information

University of California Hastings College of the Law
Net Pension Liability – Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Year Ended June 30, 2018
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION RETIREE HEALTH BENEFITS
The schedule of the College’s proportionate share of UCRHBT’s net retiree health benefits liability is presented
below:
Proportion of the
net retiree health
benefits liability

Proportionate
share of net retiree
health benefits liability

Covered
payroll

Year Ended June 30
2018
2017
2016

0.2%
0.2%
0.2%

$
$
$

37,604,000
40,908,000
49,576,000

$
$
$

Plan fiduciary net
position as a
Proportionate share of the
percentage of the
net retiree health benefits
total
liability as a percentage of
retiree health benefits
its covered payroll
liability

24,929,000
24,471,000
24,451,000

151.0%
166.8%
202.9%

0.7%
0.6%
0.3%

NET PENSION LIABILITY – REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
The schedule of the College’s proportionate share of UCRP’s net pension liability as of June 30 is:

Year Ended June 30
2018
2017
2016
2015
2014
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Proportion
of the net
pension
liability
0.2%
0.2%
0.2%
0.3%
0.3%

Proportionate
share of net
pension liability
$
$
$
$
$

19,434,000
21,931,000
32,086,000
24,207,000
18,664,000

Covered
payroll
$
$
$
$
$

24,035,000
23,788,000
24,451,000
24,499,000
24,039,000

Proportionate
share of the net
pension liability
as a percentage
of its covered
payroll
81.3%
92.2%
131.2%
98.8%
77.6%

Plan fiduciary
net position as
a percentage of
the total
pension
liability
85.9%
84.0%
77.2%
82.9%
86.3%
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Finance Committee
November 8, 2018

REPORT ITEM
1.

REPORT BY:

Chief Financial Officer David Seward

2.

SUBJECT:

UC Hastings – Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

3.

REPORT:

An overview of college-wide financial operations is attached and will be presented to the
Finance Committee at its meeting.

October 2018

UC Hastings College of the Law
Overview of Financial Operations – 2018
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and state support
2

 Revenue diversification in form of increased fundraising, auxiliary enterprises

 Cash position remain strong buttressed by investment liquidations

 Debt Management and restructuring achieve future savings

 Cost curtailment and control successful

 Investment total returns in 2017 and 2018 exceed benchmarks

Positive Factors

health care costs

 GASB changes have obligated reporting of unfunded pension and retiree

 Enrollments in major programs have been flat

 Tuition discounting strategies have reduced net student fee revenue

 No growth in student fees from 2014 to 2018

Negative Factors

Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

•

•

Key Drivers of Financial Performance

$
$
$
$
$

2017-18
Tuition
49,364
47,763
45,657
45,155
44,326

2017-18
Nonresident
$
53,315
$
57,014
$
52,151
$
51,649
$
50,326

Univ. of Southern California
Fordham University
George Washington
Boston University
New York Law School
University of San Francisco

Program
$
$
$
$
$
$

2017-18
Tuition
62,711
58,196
58,520
53,236
50,718
49,130

$47,634
$53,634

Total Resident
Total Nonresident

$48,335
$54,335

2014-15
$43,486
6,000
82
618
4,149

Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

2013-14
$43,486
6,000
82
618
3,448

JD Student Fees
General Enrollment Fee
Nonresident Tuition
Activity Fees
Health Services Fee
Student Health Insurance

$48,638
$54,638

2015-16
$43,486
6,000
82
633
4,437

$48,971
$54,971

2016-17
$43,486
6,000
82
650
4,753

$49,100
$55,100

2017-18
$43,486
6,000
157
683
4,774

• Mandatory fees remained flat; there were changes to health services, health
insurance and activity fees.

Berkeley Law
UC Davis
UCLA
UC Irvine
UC Hastings

Program

• The General Enrollment Fee is unchanged since 2011-12 (six years of flat fees).
• Comparative mandatory fees for UC law schools (excluding Student Health Insurance
Premium) and tuition for private law schools are displayed.

Law School Tuition 2017-18

3

27%
29%

$ 46,934,614
$ 33,327,807
$ 12,571,257
$ 1,035,550

24%
27%

$ 42,799,942
$ 31,209,462
$ 10,335,966
$ 1,254,514

Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

Grant Discount
Overall Discount

Tuition and Fees (gross)
Tuition and Fees (net)
Hastings Grants
Tuition & Fees Scholarships

29%
33%

$ 40,411,211
$ 27,222,222
$ 11,766,346
$ 1,422,643

36%
40%

$ 41,451,656
$ 24,684,963
$ 15,075,040
$ 1,691,653

2017

42%
47%

$ 42,025,830
$ 22,456,392
$ 17,523,215
$ 2,046,223

2018

Blended rates by fiscal year basis for all students:

•

2016

Phase down in implementation: 2017-18 grant discount at 42%, 2018-19 planned grant
discount rate at 37.5%.

•

2015

Shift in financial aid strategy beginning 2015 from need to merit based awards to
compete with peer schools.

•

2014

Tuition discounting has historically ranged between 28%-31% driven in large measure
by state policy (1/3 of new fee revenue returned to aid).

•

Financial Aid Strategy - Tuition Discounting

4

Aggregate discount rate peaked in 2018 with budgetary relief to be realized over next
several years as 3-year cohorts cycle and graduate.

Private fundraising has been successful prioritizing merit-based, current use
scholarships partially backfilling tuition-based discounting.

New diversity pipeline scholarship, $4.5 million in state funding 2018-19.
• “The California Scholarship at UC Hastings, San Francisco”
• Funds 12 students from HBCUs (Historically Black Colleges and Universities) and
3 students from the American University in Armenia (AUA).
• Beginning with 2019 entering class:
• $750,000 per year for 6 years
• Provides $45,000 enrollment fee and $20,000 living expenses/student.

•

•

•

Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

For the 2018 and 2019 entering JD classes, tuition derived discount rates of 37.5% and
30% are planned.

•

Financial Aid Strategy - Tuition Discounting

5

2014

2015

2016
2017
(Restated) (Restated)

2018

1,104 $
8,915 $

Other Changes in Net Position $
Total $

3,775 $

2,400 $

(9,579) $

1,890 $

7,514 $

2,319 $

1,180

1,773

6

Revenues $ 70,287 $ 65,029 $ 54,144 $ 69,224 $ 63,462
Expense $ 62,476 $ 63,654 $ 65,613 $ 64,029 $ 64,055
Net Income $ 7,811 $ 1,375 $ (11,469) $ 5,195 $
(593)

(In thousands)

Operating performance:
 Impaired by stable JD, LLM and MSL enrollment, flat student fees, and tuition
discounting.
 Benefited by growth in state funding, auxiliary enterprise revenues, cost control,
grant overheads and fundraising.
 Investment returns have been variable.

Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

•

Net Income & Other Changes 2014-2018

2014

2015

2017

2018

8,843 $ 14,741 $ (32,728)

2016

7

Liquidation of Federal Perkins Loan Program (Congress discontinued 2017 for graduate
programs) decreases loan receivable assets by $3.8 million in 2018.

•
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GASB Statement No. 75 impact on 2018 audited financial statement, including restatement
of prior years: $40.9 million noncurrent liability in cumulative retiree health care benefits.

Unrestricted Net Position
Restated after GASB No. 75 $ 9,173 $ 13,101 $ (36,599) $ (32,640) $ (32,728)

Unrestricted Net Position
Before GASB no. 75 $ 9,173 $ 13,101 $

(In thousands)

Unrestricted net position would have remained positive but for cumulative impact of GASB
reporting requirements recognizing unfunded pension and retiree health care liabilities.

•

•

Unrestricted Net Position – GASB No. 75

36,909 $
17.06%
1.61%

Endowment Investments & Assets Held
by Others $

General Endowment Pool - Total Return
Cash Pool (STIP) - Total Return

Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

13,554 $
39,933 $
53,487 $

Total Cash & Cash Equivalents $
Other Long Term Investments $
Total Cash & Investments $

7.41%
1.41%

38,226 $

13,513 $
42,892 $
56,405 $

-3.54%
1.24%

35,723 $

13,307 $
41,366 $
54,673 $

2016

14.80%
1.25%

39,599 $

15,955 $
42,153 $
58,108 $

2017

8

8.89%
1.62%

43,903

15,683
39,720
55,403

2018

UC Investment returns have been favorable compared to benchmarks.

•
2015

The market value of endowment investments has grown $7 million (18.9%); from $36.9
million (2014) to $43.9 million (2018).

•

2014

Liquidation of $6.2 million of long term investments (GEP) to fund net operating deficit
in 2018 Core Operations.

•

(in thousands)

Cash and liquidity positions remain strong.

•

Cash and Liquidity

Series 2008 Bonds @ 4.53% (Parking
Garage/Retail Project)
Series 2017 Bonds @ 3.44% (Refunding)
Unamortized Bond (Discount)/Premium
Total Bonds Payable
$ 22,470,000
$
$ (123,138)
$ 22,346,862

2014

$ 21,875,000
$
$ (129,781)
$ 21,745,219

2015

$ 21,255,000
$
$ (130,736)
$ 21,124,264

2016

$ 20,605,000
$
$ (126,480)
$ 20,478,520

2017

$
$ 17,610,000
$ 2,849,244
$ 20,459,244

2018

9

 Positive cash flow savings of $200,000 annually 2019-2022 (approximately $120,000
annually thereafter).

 $2.1M in net present value savings achieved; bond term maintained.

 In December 2017, outstanding Series 2008 Bonds refunded.

Series 2017 Bonds achieve savings beginning in 2019

Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

•

Debt Management & Refunding

$ 8,505,000
$ 9,741,000
$ 10,784,000
$ 13,785,000
$ 12,884,000
$ 19,894,000
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*Includes one-time $1,457,000 for UCPath Project and one-time $4,500,000
for diversity pipeline "California Scholarships."

2013-14
2014-15
2015-16
2016-17
2017-18
2018-19*

10

For 2019, the Budget Act increased state operating support by $1.1 million (8.5%). Additional
one-time appropriations also funded:
• $4.5 million for diversity pipeline “California Scholarships”
• $1.5 million for UC Path Implementation Project

•

Total

For 2018, the Budget Act increased state operating support by $1.1 million (9.3%).

•

General Fund Lottery Fund
Deferred
Support
Maintenance
(one-time)
8,360,000
145,000
9,628,000
113,000
10,644,000
140,000
11,659,000
126,000
2,000,000
12,726,000
158,000
19,769,000
125,000
500,000

State operating support has increased by an annual average 10.3% annually over the last
four years, from $8.5 million in 2014 to $12.9 million in 2018.

•

State Funding

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

Realized and Unrealized net gains
(losses) on investments
$
Total Revenues
$

State Appropriations
Student Fees, Net of Grants
Auxiliary Enterprises
Gifts, including Block Grant
Grants and Contracts
Investment Income
Other Revenue
Subtotal

(In thousands)
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

9,600 $
66,004 $

8,505
33,328
7,314
3,898
1,141
1,036
1,182
56,404

2014
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

4,369 $
61,142 $

9,741
31,209
7,758
3,522
2,399
830
1,314
56,773

2015
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

(3,076) $
50,224 $

10,784
27,222
8,189
3,282
1,764
605
1,454
53,300

2016

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

9,525 $
64,608 $

13,786
24,685
8,599
4,050
2,093
679
1,191
55,083

2017

5,909
58,824

12,884
22,456
8,750
4,814
1,726
725
1,560
52,915

2018
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-7.69%
-2.18%

10.30%
-6.52%
3.93%
4.70%
10.25%
-6.00%
6.40%
-1.24%

Avg. Annual
Change

 State funding growth has partially mitigated net tuition drop, 24% of 2018 revenues.

 Net Tuition remains the primary source, 42% of 2018 revenues.

Diversified revenue flows distinguish UC Hastings from other independent, stand-alone law
schools (figures exclude UC Hastings Foundation).
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Revenues 2014-2018

2014

2015

2016

Tuition & Fees (Net of
Grants & Scholarships)

State Appropriations

Other

Auxiliary Enterprises

Grants & Contracts
Gifts

Overview of Financial Operations - 2018

$-

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

Revenues (excluding gain/loss on investments)

Revenues 2014-2018

Dollars in Millions

2017

2018

12

Salaries and Benefits
- Salary and wages
- Faculty
- Non-Faculty
- Benefits Non-Pension
- Pension Benefits
- Retiree Health Benefits
Scholarships and Fellowships
Auxiliary Enterprises
Utilities
Supplies and Services
Depreciation
Interest on Debt
Other
Total Expenses

(in thousands)

$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$
$

12,870
13,800
4,965
3,155
851
5,123
932
10,720
2,140
1,432
2,335
58,323 $

2014

13,075
14,555
4,928
3,380
551
5,168
971
11,216
2,194
985
2,523
59,547

2015

2018

$ 12,508 $ 12,379 $ 13,025
$ 14,265 $ 14,466 $ 14,713
$ 5,073 $ 4,365 $ 4,816
$ 5,308 $ 2,725 $ 1,253
$
$ 2,846 $ 1,755
$
564 $
545 $
606
$ 5,182 $ 5,216 $ 5,408
$
917 $ 1,023 $ 1,071
$ 9,925 $ 10,513 $ 11,529
$ 2,071 $ 2,045 $ 1,990
$
965 $
944 $ 1,355
$ 1,707 $ 2,332 $ 1,868
$ 58,485 $ 59,399 $ 59,389

2016
2017
(Restated) (Restated)

0.24%
1.32%
-0.60%
-12.06%
NA
-5.76%
1.11%
2.98%
1.51%
-1.40%
-1.08%
-4.00%
0.37%

Avg.
Annual
Change

Expenses remain fairly steady (figures exclude UC Hastings Foundation).
 Payroll and benefits constitute 61% of operating expenses in 2018 ($35.6 million)
and 61% in 2014 ($34.8 million).
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Expenditures 2014-2018
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2014

2015

2016 (Restated)

Salaries, Wages &
Benefits

Interest & Depreciation
Other
Auxiliary Enterprises
Scholarships &
Fellowships
Supplies, Services,
Utilties
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$-

$10

$20

$30

$40

$50

$60

Expenses (including Interest & Depreciation)

Expenditures 2014-2018

Dollars in Millions

2017 (Restated)

2018

14

2018

Change
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(77)
1,228

2017

Interest on debt
$ 1,432
985 $ 965 $ 944 $ 1,355
Net Auxiliary Revenues
$ 759 $ 1,605 $ 2,042 $ 2,439 $ 1,987
Change
$ 846 $ 437 $ 397 $ (452)
% Change
111%
27%
19%
-19%

2016

1,436
285
1,151

2015

Sales and Services
$ 7,314 $ 7,758 $ 8,189 $ 8,599 $ 8,750
Expenses & Depreciation
$ 5,123
5,168 $ 5,182 $ 5,216 $ 5,408
Net Auxiliary Operations
$ 2,191 $ 2,590 $ 3,007 $ 3,383 $ 3,342
Change
$ 399 $ 417 $ 376 $ (41)
% Change
18%
16%
13%
-1%

2014

-1.08%
32.36%

Avg.
Annual
Change
3.93%
1.11%
10.51%

15

Auxiliary Enterprise expenses include over $1 million in administrative overhead
assessments – credited to state operations – reflecting 12% of operating revenues.

•

(In thousands)

Student housing and parking garage have generated positive net operating revenues.
Student health services and Business Center operations have been mostly self-supporting.

•

Auxiliary Enterprises 2014-2018

2014
2015

43,337,023
13,224,062
850,715
8,727
57,420,527
$ 4,706,403 $

Sub-total

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

Hastings Digardi Hall

State Plant Fund

State Financial Aid

State Operations

41,579,182
12,084,060
842,054
1,330,117
55,835,413

51,434,279

(64,602)

51,839,282
(340,402)

771,256 $ (4,401,134) $

42,936,399
10,674,695
1,880,235
218,069
55,709,398

56,480,655

62,126,930

Sub-total

54,809,784
1,146,571
524,299

60,124,177
1,233,962
768,791

Expenses/Uses

2016

2017

2018

2019

44,878,832
17,726,128
3,836,963
1,249,552
67,691,475

59,923,379

339,128

58,724,313
859,938

(230,411) $ (7,768,096)

44,380,107
15,366,561
469,910
571,613
60,788,191

60,557,780

1,077,468

57,935,050
1,545,262

14,243,236
17,806,328
19,005,018
17,181,058
15,369,440
11,488,793
9,265,531
9,648,777
8,915,114
7,732,658
8,808,010
5,830,985
5,070,939
5,831,004
6,137,234
4,742,515
5,248,370
4,337,947
$ 28,579,706 $ 33,286,109 $ 34,057,365 $ 29,656,231 $ 29,425,821 $ 21,657,724

Hastings Digardi Hall

State Plant Fund

State Operations

Revenues/Additions

Beginning Balance

Hastings Digardi Hall

State Plant Fund

Unrestricted Reserve Funds
State Operations*

Unrestricted Reserves: State Operating, State Plant Fund and Hastings-Digardi-Hall
 State Operating Revenues declined $1.4 million from 2014 to 2018; average fiveyear change -0.47% (includes realized/unrealized gain/loss on investments)
 State Operating Expenses increased $1.5 million from 2014 to 2018; average fiveyear change +0.71% (excludes non-cash GASB benefit adjustments)
 State Financial Aid increased $4.5 million from 2014-2018; average five-year
change +6.81% (all programs)
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Unrestricted Reserves 2014-2018
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REPORT ITEM

1.

REPORT BY:

Chief Financial Officer David Seward

2.

SUBJECT:

Adjournment to Closed Executive Session Pursuant
to Education Code Section 92032(b)(7) Discussion of
Management Performance as Related to the Operations of
College

3.

REPORT:

Oral
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REPORT ITEM
1.

REPORT BY:

Chief Financial Officer David Seward

2.

SUBJECT:

Investment Report as of September 30, 2018

3.

REPORT:

Attached is a performance summary of the investment pools managed by the Treasurer’s
Office of the University of California.



The General Endowment Pool (GEP) experienced total returns of 1.73 percent as
of September 30, 2018. On a calendar year basis, GEP had a total return of 3.85
percent.
The Short Term Investment Pool (STIP) experienced total returns of 0.61 percent
as of September 30, 2018. On a calendar year basis, STIP had a total return of
1.51 percent.

Attached is a summary of Rates of Return – Unit Values issued by State Street Bank.

Limited Access
10/18/2018 10:40:51 AM

1.78

GEP EMERGING MARKET DEBT

181,085,356

-0.64

UCR BBG BARC Agg (Dly)

0.83

GEP HIGH YIELD

386,819,487

-0.64

UCR BBG BARC Agg (Dly)

-0.43

GEP TOTAL CORE FIXED INCOME

753,785,588

-0.64

BBG BARC Agg (Dly)

0.37

GEP TOTAL FIXED INCOME W/ TIPS & DOLLAR

1,665,064,467

0.44

MSCI AC WORLD (NET)

0.55

GEP GLOBAL EQUITY

2,479,910,758

-0.53

EMERGING MARKETS EQUITY POLICY BENCHMARK

-2.98

GEP EMERGING MARKET EQUITY

754,609,087

0.82

BLENDED EAFE TF + CANADA INDEX

0.33

GEP DEVELOPED NON US PUBLIC EQUITY

923,953,100

0.46

-1.19

1,678,562,188

GEP TOTAL NON-US PUBLIC EQUITIES + EQ

NON-US EQUITIES POLICY BENCHMARK

0.12

U.S. EQUITY B-MARK R3000 TF

0.10

1,132,184,884

GEP TOTAL US PUBLIC EQUITIES

0.14

1 Month

0.02

12,311,170,414

EMV

GEP TOTAL PORTFOLIO BM AUDIT ADJUSTED

GEP Unit Value Audit Adjusted

TOTAL FUND

GEP STIP UNIT VALUE RETURN SUMMARY REPORT

Periods Ending September 30, 2018

RATES OF RETURN - Unit Value

Chief Investment Officer of the Regents

2.17

0.02

1.97

0.02

0.07

0.02

0.98

4.28

3.71

-1.09

-3.94

1.40

2.10

0.71

-0.70

7.14

5.76

2.83

1.73

3 Month

-1.38

-0.14

2.86

-0.14

0.08

-0.14

0.43

4.83

5.09

-8.97

-6.04

0.71

3.11

-1.93

-1.30

11.50

6.17

4.04

3.25

6 Month

2.17

0.02

1.97

0.02

0.07

0.02

0.98

4.28

3.71

-1.09

-3.94

1.40

2.10

0.71

-0.70

7.14

5.76

2.83

1.73

FYTD

-2.94

-1.60

2.34

-1.60

-0.87

-1.60

-0.40

3.83

3.72

-7.68

-5.91

-1.18

2.59

-3.09

-1.38

10.87

2.71

3.64

3.85

CYTD

-1.71

-1.22

3.59

-1.22

-0.69

-1.22

0.58

9.77

7.93

-0.81

6.66

2.97

8.72

1.76

8.36

17.94

3.27

7.64

7.49

1 Year

6.29

7.32

0.68

0.55

1.31

3.46

13.40

11.14

12.36

15.16

9.49

12.60

9.97

13.70

17.17

8.25

9.17

9.11

3 Year

4.41

5.48

1.78

1.71

2.16

2.98

3.61

6.82

4.29

6.65

4.12

6.77

13.48

7.98

7.27

8.25

5 Year

1 of 4

8.73

9.10

3.58

3.50

3.77

5.13

5.40

7.12

5.14

6.75

5.18

6.61

11.96

9.53

6.77

7.55

10 Year

253,684,530

GEP LIQUIDITY

Limited Access
10/18/2018 10:40:51 AM

0.69

8,308,330
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0.44
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-0.12
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0.44

1.61
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-0.76

0.02

3 Month
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-0.14
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-0.14

6 Month
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0.21

0.58

0.61

0.65
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0.15
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-0.12
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FYTD

-1.00

-1.60
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-1.60

CYTD
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1.86

1.89
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9.64

9.64

3.58

3.58

3.57

6.72

19.12

21.23

-1.22

0.58

-1.22

1 Year

9.85

1.31
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1.10

1.46

1.35
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8.78

8.78

-1.01
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19.57
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1.48

2.22

3 Year
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1.46
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1.38
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-0.24

-0.24
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21.58

21.35

1.04

1.55
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REPORT ITEM
1.

REPORT BY:

Chief Financial Officer David Seward

2.
3.

SUBJECT:
REPORT:

State Budget Report for 2018-19 as of September 30, 2018

Attached is the state budget report for 2018-19 as of September 30, 2018. Major
variances are discussed below:
Revenues




State Appropriations, General Fund – The 2018-19 state appropriation total of
$19,769,000 includes one-time allocations of $1,457,000 towards the UC Path Project
and $4,500,000 for the Diversity Pipeline Initiative funding financial aid for students
from historically black colleges and universities and the American University in
Armenia (annual outlays of $750,000 begin 2019-20). The State of California remits
to the College on a monthly basis 1/12 of its appropriation so while the total dollar
amount recognized as of September 2018 is greater than September 2017, the
“percentage of total” is as expected.
Tuition and Related Fees – The table below reports projected FTE student enrollment
and actual enrollments based on revenues as of September 2018.
FTE Student Enrollment
2018-19
JD Students
LLM
MSL
TOTAL



Beginning Actual as
Budget of 9/30/18 Variance
944.0
928.3
(15.7)
21.0
15.7
(5.3)
0.6
2.1
1.5
965.6
946.1
(19.5)

Registration Fee – The beginning budget projected total JD enrollment of 944 FTE
students paying the $43,486 General Enrollment Fee. As of September revenue from
928 FTE students was received for the fall 2018 semester. Looking at revenue after
state financial aid, the annualized projected variance is positive.
JD Program
2018-19

9/30/18
Beginning
Actual as of
Annualized
Budget
9/30/18
Projection
Registration Fee
41,050,784
20,183,744
40,367,488
Financial Aid
17,635,060
8,246,645
16,493,290
Net JD Revenues
$ 23,415,724 $ 11,937,099 $ 23,874,198
Grant Discount Rate
43.0%
40.9%
40.9%

1

Projection
Variance to
Budget
(683,296)
(1,141,770)
$ 458,474



LL.M. Tuition – The enrollment fee of $47,500 for LL.M. students was budgeted to
be paid by 21.0 FTE students. As of September, revenue from 15.7 students has been
recorded. Projected annual revenue after financial aid indicates a slight net negative
variance.
LLM Program
2018-19

9/30/18
Projection
Beginning
Actual as of
Annualized Variance to
Budget
9/30/18
Projection
Budget
Registration Fee
997,500
371,819
743,638
(253,862)
Financial Aid
624,295
202,708
405,416
(218,879)
Net LLM Revenues $
373,205 $
169,111 $
338,222 $ (34,983)
Grant Discount Rate
62.6%
54.5%
54.5%



MSL Tuition – Part-time students are enrolled in the MSL program so revenues vary
by semester. The beginning budget was based on .6 FTE paying $39,000 tuition. As
of September, revenue from 2.1 FTE students has been recorded. Assuming this level
of enrollment carries through the spring semester, revenue after financial aid indicates
a small projected net positive trend.
MSL Program
2018-19

9/30/18
Projection
Beginning
Actual as of
Annualized Variance to
Budget
9/30/18
Projection
Budget
Registration Fee
24,375
40,094
80,188
55,813
Financial Aid
8,437
16,874
16,874
Net MSL Revenues $
24,375 $
31,657 $
63,314 $ 38,939
Grant Discount Rate
0.0%
21.0%
21.0%





Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investments – This category accounts for the change in the
market value of the state fund’s share of the UC General Endowment Pool (GEP). As
of September 2018 unrealized gains of $404,589 have been posted with each month
of the first quarter experiencing gains. Unrealized gains of $835,954 were recognized
as of September 2017; however, by fiscal year-end this was reversed and a net loss in
market value of ($187,884) resulted.
Prior Year Reserve/Beginning Fund Balance – The carryover of prior year fund
balance, budgeted at preliminary balance of $11,463,999, has been finalized at
$11,488,793. This is the net amount of state fund assets less liabilities with the noncash pension accounts excluded (i.e., deferred outflows/inflows of resources, net
pension and retiree health benefits liabilities with UCRP).

Expenditures


Staff Benefits – The 2018-19 benefit allocation rate of 34% has been budgeted on
applicable wage categories (excluding stipends and student wages). The benefit
expense as of September 2018 is 23% of budget. While it appears this is a large
percentage variance compared to last year’s reported 3% actual to year-end
2





expenditures, the 2017-18 year-end actual includes $47,381,000 related the
cumulative effect of GASB accounting and reporting changes for retiree health
benefit liabilities; when excluded the adjusted actual September 2017 benefits
expense is 21% of total year-end expenditures
Equipment and Improvements – Included in the beginning budget are allocations of
$140,000 for new and replacement IT and Media Services equipment and $25,000 for
equipment supporting the UCPath Implementation team. IT and Media Services
expenditures as of September 2018 total $111,643 or 62% of total $180,865 budget.
Financial Aid Grants – The segments of financial aid and their status as of September
2018 are:
o JD Grants – An amount sufficient to fund the student aid strategies for the
Class of 2021 is included in the total 2018-19 JD grant budget of
$17,635,060. Awards in the fall semester total $8,246,645 or 47% of
budget. If the spring semester experiences the same level of expenditure,
total budgetary savings of $1.1 million would result by year-end;
offsetting is a projected revenue decrease of $.7 million. A midyear budget
adjustment will be proposed after confirming spring semester awards.
o LL.M. Grants – Awards in the fall semester total $202,708 or 32% of the
$624,295 budget; revenues are 37% of budget.
o MSL Grants – Awards in the fall semester total $8,437. Although no
grants were included in the beginning budget, net MSL revenues are
projected to exceed projections.
o LRAP Loan Cancellations – Expenditures of $74,092 against the 2018-19
budget of $275,000 have been incurred as of September.
o International Summer Internships – No expenditures have yet been
incurred in 2018-19 against a budget of $23,000; these are summer awards
to rising 1L and 2L students to help defray travel and living expenses
while working on international issues in an unpaid position.

3

Total

4,739,275 *
$ 4,739,275

Actual
as of
30-Sep-18

*See attached narrative

$ 37,517,439

$ 75,889,151

TOTAL REVENUES

$ 11,488,793 *

$ 11,463,999

Prior Year Reserve/Beginning Fund Balance

-

$

Transfer from Other Funds

$

$

-

20,195
2,603
404,589 *
6,255
34,579
468,221

10,110
10,110

215,000
1,190,459
47,950
$ 1,453,409

$

Other Income
Investment Income
Realized Gain/Loss on Sale of Investments
Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investments
Overhead Allowances
Miscellaneous
Total

59,743
59,743

$

726,000
396,000
41,050,784
20,183,744 *
(791,748)
(351,314)
997,500
371,819 *
24,375
40,094 *
410,607
576,938
121,165
23,544
49,532
$ 43,018,000 $ 20,811,040

19,769,000
125,000
$ 19,894,000

Beginning
Budget
2018-19

Scholarly Publications
Subscription Revenues
Total

Tuition and Related Fees
Non-resident Tuition
Registration Fee
Veteran Fee Waivers
LL.M. Tuition
MSL Tuition
HPL Revenue Share
Summer Legal Institute
Other Student Fees
Total

State Appropriations
General Fund
Lottery Fund

REVENUES

HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
State Budget Report -- 2018-19

49%

100%

--

9%
--1%
72%
32%

17%
17%

55%
49%
44%
37%
164%
0%
21%
210%
48%

24%
0%
24%

Actual Sep-18
as a
Percent of
Budget
2,978,525
$ 2,978,525

Actual
as of
30-Sep-17

$

260,726

$ 74,093,753

902

27,920
835,954
43,321
907,195

6,537
6,537

$ 40,149,212

$ 15,369,440

$

209,185
2,322,445
(187,884)
1,254,326
76,561
3,674,633 $

61,106
61,106

$ 15,369,440

$

$

$

714,129
372,129
40,025,883
20,180,896
(766,263)
(365,888)
799,361
450,010
102,102
62,094
332,097
611,192
167,440
24,906
19,932
$ 41,843,406 $ 20,886,613

12,726,000
158,442
$ 12,884,442

Year-end
Actual
2017-18

19BOD State.xls/Sep18

54%

100%

0%

13%
0%
-445%
0%
57%
25%

11%
11%

52%
50%
48%
56%
61%
0%
27%
80%
50%

23%
0%
23%

Actual Sep-17
as a Percent
of 2017-18
Year-end

10/29/2018
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Salaries & Wages
Student Wages-Reg. & Work-study
Staff Benefits
Consultants
Temporary Help (Contracted)
Employee Development & Testing
Recruiting & Advertising
Audit, Legal, and Case Costs
Insurance
Printing & Copier Service
Supplies
Travel
Dues & Subscriptions
Events & Entertainment
Computer Software
Data Processing
Info Retrieval & Bibliography Svc.
Books & Bindings
Equipment Maintenance
Building Maintenance
Other Contract Services
Utilities
Telephone
Mail
Misc. (Including Bank Fees)
Equipment & Improvements
Space & Equipment Rental
Financial Aid Grants
Perkins Loan Matching Funds (Return)
Collection Costs
Transfer to Other Funds
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXPENDITURES

HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
State Budget Report -- 2018-19

Beginning
Budget
2018-19
25,962,526
457,528
8,589,324
1,195,913
395,973
167,313
257,647
186,300
305,191
700,152
274,205
810,729
239,317
384,145
693,727
99,008
478,840
769,149
128,867
1,059,246
2,686,552
1,163,850
73,788
62,083
264,573
180,865
565,632
18,557,355
4,820
40,000
$ 66,754,618

Actual
as of
30-Sep-18
6,289,436
107,644
2,003,023 *
91,131
61,795
57,878
30,147
26,345
312,153
168,009
60,658
105,863
58,572
64,864
194,286
29,938
278,283
88,336
55,540
251,992
632,391
191,052
10,913
15,904
84,334
111,643 *
166,154
8,531,882 *
202
(200)
$ 20,080,168

19BOD State.xls/Sep18

Actual Sep-18
Actual Sep-17
as a
Year-end
Actual
as a Percent
Percent of
Actual
as of
of 2017-18
Budget
2017-18
30-Sep-17
Year-end
24%
24,375,564
6,161,376
25%
24%
438,587
62,544
14%
23%
55,988,561
1,772,119
3%
8%
419,476
48,261
12%
16%
228,788
17,684
8%
35%
149,615
37,477
25%
12%
137,802
23,972
17%
14%
169,263
(1,937)
-1%
102%
304,424
474,265
156%
24%
662,553
157,635
24%
22%
255,572
60,211
24%
13%
494,999
75,487
15%
24%
257,439
60,726
24%
17%
311,125
79,417
26%
28%
585,264
190,840
33%
30%
116,800
36,026
31%
58%
214,566
185,176
86%
11%
1,048,948
314,091
30%
43%
85,511
55,911
65%
24%
973,137
161,088
17%
24%
2,618,289
324,277
12%
16%
1,070,597
218,048
20%
15%
84,093
10,094
12%
26%
50,460
20,621
41%
32%
281,284
82,292
29%
62%
197,371
31,009
16%
29%
584,751
130,989
22%
46%
17,726,128
8,956,882
51%
-(241,482)
0%
4%
18,802
1,136
6%
-1%
0%
376,394
30%
$ 109,984,681 $ 19,747,717
18%
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REPORT ITEM

1.

REPORT BY:

Chief Financial Officer David Seward

2.

SUBJECT:

Auxiliary Enterprises Budget Report as of September
30, 2018

3.

REPORT:

Attached for all auxiliary enterprises of the College – McAllister Tower, Parking Garage,
Student Health Services, Business Center and Client Services Center – are budget reports
for 2018-19 as of September 30, 2018. Major variances are discussed below.
McALLISTER TOWER
Expenditures
 Regular Contract Services – Included in this category are janitorial, engineer and
security service contracts. As of September 2018 janitorial expense reflects two
months ($19,307/month) and one month of engineer services at $49,826. As of
September 2017 one month of janitorial expenditures was reflected due to delayed
billing by the service provider. The UCSF PD contract is paid quarterly; the first
quarter’s payment is not reflected as of September 30.
 Equipment and Building Improvements – Budgeted is $20,000 to update and refresh
the Clara Foltz lounge; significant project expenditures have not yet been incurred.
HASTINGS PARKING GARAGE
Expenditures
 Salaries and Wages, Staff Benefits – The 2018-19 beginning budget approved by the
Board in June included an allocation for 50% of a Senior Accountant position’s time.
Subsequently this direct allocation of expense has been included in the Fiscal Service
department’s budget representing reduced projected expenditures of $43,563 in salary
and wages and $14,811 in benefits. The downward budget change will be reflected at
midyear. The percentage of actual expenses as of September compared to adjusted
budgets (salaries $233,228 and benefits $79,299) is 23%.
 Insurance – The budget for 2018-19 insurance expense, established before the new
premium quotes were received, was based on 2017-18 actual of $59,503. Actual
premiums are $65,380 or $5,877 (+10%) more and the budget will be adjusted at
midyear.

1

CLIENT SERVICES CENTER
Revenues
 Room Rental – The transition of accounting for room rental activities in the new
Client Services Center, established as an auxiliary enterprise, has not yet been
implemented. Room rental revenues continue to be recorded in an unrestricted
nonstate college-wide account, as in the past, but will be reclassified; $17,749 has
been recorded as of September 2018 and $45,798 was posted as of September 2017.
Expenditures
 Operating Expenditures – Salaries, benefits and other operating costs supporting the
Client Services Center continue to be recorded in the state funded College Events
Center but will be reclassified; $19,913 has been recorded as of September 2018 and
$32,387 was posted as of September 2017.

2

* See attached narrative.

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income
Realized Gain/Loss on Investments
Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investments
Transfer to Other Funds
TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES

NET OPERATIONS

Salaries and Wages
Student Wages--Regular & Work-study
Staff Benefits
Regular Contract Services
Other Contract Services
Utilities
Maintenance & Special Repairs
Insurance
Supplies
Printing & Reproduction
Telephone
Miscellaneous
Equipment & Building Improvements
Overhead Pro Rata
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

EXPENDITURES

Apartment & Commercial Rent
Other
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

REVENUES

McAllister Tower Budget Report -- 2018-19

HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW

$ 2,012,956

$

$

$

$

862,252

21,353
88
13,634
35,075

827,177

21,284
1,135
7,237
110,851 *
945
142,185
25,181
124,167
19,003
165
150
17,446
2,652 *
472,401

1,294,957
4,621
$ 1,299,578

Actual
as of
30-Sep-18

35,000
(5,000)
30,000 $

$ 1,982,956

90,254
21,700
30,686
1,296,241
757,723
274,263
121,561
135,000
1,800
776
88,522
20,000
657,475
$ 3,496,001

5,455,707
23,250
$ 5,478,957

Beginning
Budget
2018-19

43%

61%
---117%

42%

24%
5%
24%
9%
-19%
9%
102%
14%
9%
19%
20%
13%
0%
14%

24%
20%
24%

$

791,879

$ 1,064,158

13,613
28,170
41,783

$ 1,022,375

$

20,765
1,750
4,707
13,579
26,810
133,472
25,502
26,360
524
219
(485)
253,203

1,269,799
5,779
$ 1,275,578

Actual
as of
30-Sep-17

76,102
78,262
(6,331)
(1,179,179)
$ (1,031,146) $

$ 1,823,025

84,871
18,596
30,334
1,299,875
41,347
752,308
170,071
115,771
126,196
1,255
856
103,952
14,207
624,909
$ 3,384,548

5,184,561
23,012
$ 5,207,573

Year-end
Actual
2017-18

134%

18%
0%
-445%
--4%

56%

24%
9%
16%
1%
65%
18%
15%
0%
21%
42%
26%
0%
0%
0%
7%

24%
25%
24%

Actual Sep-17
as a Percent
of 2017-18
Year-end

C:\Users\colec\Documents\DATA\2018-19\19BOD Tower.xls\Sep18

Actual Sep-18
as a
Percent of
Budget
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TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

639,423

$

(17,497) $

4
1
78
(3,484)
213,709
2,344
212,651

426,772

54,330
18,472
265
13,966
3,582
65,380
1,288
446
8,925
166,653

500,558
92,642
225
593,425

Actual
as of
30-Sep-18

2,000 $
(1,388,150)
$ (1,386,150) $
$

$

$ 1,368,653

NET OPERATIONS

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income
Realized Gain/Loss on Investments
Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investments
Funded from Bond Proceeds
Debt Service (Principal & Interest)
Transfer from Other Funds
Cash Short/Over

$

$

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

2,092,600
373,461
600
$ 2,466,661

276,791
94,110
126,160
13,140
89,400
88,030
59,503
10,000
3,600
41,275
295,999
$ 1,098,008

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and Wages
Staff Benefits
Regular Contract Services
Other Contract Services
Utilities
Maintenance & Special Repairs
Insurance
Supplies
Printing, Telephone and Mail
Miscellaneous & Credit Card Fees
Overhead Pro Rata

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

REVENUES
Parking Operations
Retail Leases
Other (including Storage)

Beginning
Budget
2018-19

HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
Hastings Parking Garage and Retail Operations Budget Report -- 2018-19

*

*
*

$

$

$

$ 1,063,989

$

3,952 $
445
(36)
10,589
(1,585,096)
1,154,179
(319)
$ (416,285) $

$

$ 1,480,274

272,200
97,262
115,327
77,343
39,530
59,503
13,036
2,640
43,092
299,985
$ 1,019,919

2,135,966
363,424
802
$ 2,500,192

Year-end
Actual
2017-18

497,931

142
160
135
438

497,493

64,025
16,664
15,214
180
788
660
6,085
103,616

512,104
88,855
150
601,108

Actual
as of
30-Sep-17

47%

4%
0%
-445%
0%
0%
0%
-43%
0%

34%

24%
17%
0%
-20%
0%
0%
6%
25%
14%
0%
10%

24%
24%
19%
24%

Actual Sep-17
as a Percent
of 2017-18
Year-end

C:\Users\colec\Documents\DATA\2018-19\19BOD Garage.xls\Sep17

-3654%

0%
----15%
---15%

31%

20%
20%
0%
2%
16%
4%
110%
13%
12%
22%
0%
15%

24%
25%
38%
24%

Actual Sep-18
as a
Percent of
Budget

3,834

$
$

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

*See attached narrative.

74,420
14,433
13,122
3,447
571
(977)
381
231
$ 105,628

$ 349,790
$ 349,790

Actual
as of
30-Sep-18

$ 245,926

$

1,742
21
1,764

(1,166) $ 244,163

5,000
5,000

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income
Realized Gain/Loss on Sale of Investments
Unrealized Gain/Loss on Investments

$

388,873
78,801
90,000
28,342
13,200
1,900
8,000
1,490
500
83,174
$ 694,280

EXPENDITURES
Salaries and Wages
Staff Benefits
Consultants and Contracted Services
Insurance
Supplies
Printing and Mail
Travel
Miscellaneous
Events
Overhead Pro Rata
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATIONS

$ 692,614
500
$ 693,114

Budget
2018-19

REVENUES
Fees
Other
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
Student Health Services Budget Report -- 2018-19

$

$

$

28,577

$ 240,714

1,429
44
1,473

$ 239,241

63,378
7,711
18,609
14,620
6,281
1,015
378
290
109
$ 112,391

$ 351,299
333
$ 351,632

Actual
as of
30-Sep-17

6,015
123
(10)
6,128 $

22,449

389,707
79,292
71,125
28,342
14,208
2,362
722
1,725
156
83,194
$ 670,833

$ 692,920
363
$ 693,282

Year-end
Actual
2017-18

842%

24%
0%
36%
-14789%

1066%

16%
10%
26%
52%
44%
43%
52%
17%
70%
0%
17%

51%
92%
51%

Actual Sep-17
as a Percent
of 2017-18
Year-end

C:\Users\colec\Documents\DATA\2018-19\19BOD Health.xls\Sep18

6414%

35%
--35%

-20940%

19%
18%
15%
0%
26%
30%
-12%
26%
46%
0%
15%

51%
0%
50%

Actual Sep-18
as a
Percent of
Budget

10/30/2018

*See attached narrative.

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Investment Income

51,807
$ 51,807

$ 99,649
$ 99,649

Actual
as of
30-Sep-18

-445%

$

$ (10,800) $ 48,018

$

35%
35%

-423%

18%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
16%

32%
32%

Actual Sep-18
as a
Percent of
Budget

176
176

500
500

$ (11,300) $ 47,842

287,250
250
500
250
250
37,800
$ 326,300

EXPENDITURES
Contracted Services
Supplies
Printing
Events & Promotions
Miscellaneous
Overhead Pro Rata
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATIONS

$ 315,000
$ 315,000

Budget
2018-19

REVENUES
Copy Services
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
Business Center Budget Report -- 2018-19

74,717
$ 74,717

$ 84,747
$ 84,747

Actual
as of
30-Sep-17

$

147
147
$ (68,299) $ 10,177

$

634
634

$ (68,933) $ 10,030

330,825
498
35,780
$ 367,102

$ 298,169
$ 298,169

Year-end
Actual
2017-18

-15%

23%
23%

-15%

23%
-0%
--0%
20%

28%
28%

Actual Sep-17
as a Percent
of 2017-18
Year-end

10/30/2018

*See attached narrative.

TOTAL CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Nonmandatory Transfers to/from Other Funds

NET OPERATIONS

EXPENDITURES
Staff Salaries and Wages
Student Wages
Staff Benefits
Supplies
Printing and Mail
Travel and Training
Miscellaneous
Overhead Pro Rata
TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

REVENUES
Room Rental
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

HASTINGS COLLEGE OF THE LAW
Client Services Center (College Events Center) -- 2018-19

22,800
22,800

$
$

-

17,200

$

-

$

-

$

$

78,729

-

$

-

-

-

-

Actual
as of
30-Sep-18

57,180
7,500
19,441
1,500
750
2,000
100
22,800
$ 111,271 $

$ 190,000
$ 190,000

Revised
Budget
2018-19

(150,000)
(78,729)
$(150,000) $ (78,729) $

$ 167,200

$

$ 190,000
$ 190,000

Beginning
Budget
2018-19

*

*

--

0%
0%

0%

0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%
0%

0%
0%

Actual Sep-18
as a Percent
of Revised
Budget

$

$

$

$

$
$

-

-

-

-

-

-

Year-end
Actual
2017-18

10/30/2018

Agenda Item: *8
Finance Committee
November 8, 2018

ACTION ITEM
1.

REPORT BY:

David Seward

2.

SUBJECT:

State Contracts and Grants in Excess of $50,000

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Finance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors authorize award of the
2018-19 state contracts described in this report.
_____________________
Item:

*8.1

Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

Professional Services – MSL
MF Digital Marketing
$50,932
One year

Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with MS Digital Marketing to
conducting a 12-month MSL Application Campaign marketing program to increase enrollment
in the MSL program. The plan includes new lead generation and engaging prospective students
to apply on a rolling basis to the MSL program.
 Develop Client Brief - background/context, target audience, key insights about them,
convention (today), vision (tomorrow) and substantiation.
 Demand Generation - create new Google Tag Manager, create new conversions and tags
for remarketing, Facebook and LinkedIn. Paid search and paid social text and image ads.
 Demand Nurture - create year-round email/customized UC Hastings webpage campaign
for each prospect updated monthly.
 Marketing Automation License Annual Subscription (10,000 prospects and 10,000
outbound emails max per month).
. _____________________
Item:

*8.2

Title:
Construction Services – Roof Repair
Vendor Name:
Western Roofing
Cost:
$70,000
Term of Contract: One year
Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with Western Roofing for spot repairs
to the roof membrane of 198 McAllister. Water has penetrated between the layers of the roof
membrane and has compromised the insulation in many areas. Only a thin base tar layer is

keeping the water from intruding into the occupied spaces and electrical infrastructure below.
The scope of work is being minimized given the planned decommissioning of the building in
2020.
_____________________

Item:
Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

*8.3
Information Systems –- Library
West Group
$91,500
Annual Renewal

Description:
Authority is requested to renew the College’s agreement with West Group for information data
bases for the law library.
_____________________
Item:
Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

*8.4
Information Systems –- Library
Lexis Nexis / Matthew Bender
$54,500
Annual Renewal

Description:
Authority is requested to renew the College’s agreement with Lexis Nexis/Matthew Bender for
information data bases for the law library.
_____________________
Item:
Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

*8.5
Information Systems –- Software License
Salesforce
$53,000
Annual Renewal

Description:
Authority is requested to renew the College’s agreement with Salesforce for software supporting
business systems.
_____________________
Item:

*8.6

Title:
Vendor Name:

Budget Management Software
To Be Determined

Cost:
$120,000 (Budgeted)
Term of Contract: One Year
Description:
A Request for Proposal has been issued seeking a software vendor to implement a
comprehensive online cloud-based budgeting tool and software solution that will accommodate
the workflow, security, budgeting and forecasting, monitoring, and reporting needs of the
organization. The College desires a scalable, easy to use, automated budgeting and forecasting
system. The software solution will be used primarily for annual budget development, long-range
budget forecasting, variance analysis, business intelligence/decision support and custom
financial reporting purposes. A recommendation will be presented at the December 2018
meeting of the Board of Directors.
_____________________
Item:

*8.7

Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

UC Path Implementation
Huron Consulting Group
$300,000
One Year

Description:
Contract authority is requested to extend an agreement with Huron Consulting Group. UC
Hastings is implementing the UCPath PeopleSoft HCM solution to replace the legacy PPS
system. As part of its implementation efforts, UC Hastings is seeking to supplement its internal
team with consultants who specialize in managing these Peoplesoft payroll system
implementations.
_____________________
Item:

*8.8

Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

UC Path Implementation
HR Solutions $66,000
One Year

Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter an agreement with HR Solutions to assist the College
with the implementation of UC Path, specifically focused on Peoplesoft software. UCH may
engage the services of Collective HR Solutions to assist with data validation, testing, training,
and payroll processing. While the UCOP’s Project Management office provides guidance in
these areas, campuses are often required to carry out the requisite duties and responsibilities
required to ensure conversion readiness. Collective HR Solutions provides a highly valued
service as they operate at a lower price point than many of the larger consulting firms (e.g.,
KPMG, Huron) they provide consultants with the same depth of knowledge. Further, they also
work with consultants who reside locally and have worked on the UC Path project at one time or
another over the last eight years. It is estimated the contract value of $66,000. The term of the

contract would be from February 1, 2019 to June 30, 2019 with the possibility of extending for
three months for payroll processing.
_____________________

4.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:

That the Finance Committee recommend that the Board of Directors approve the contracts listed
below.
*8.1
*8.2
*8.3
*8.4
*8.5
*8.6
*8.7
*8.8

Professional Services – MF Digital Marketing – MSL
Construction Services – Western Roofing – Roof Repair
Information Systems – West Group - Library
Information Systems – Lexis Nexis /Matthew Bender - Library
Information Systems – Salesforce – Software License
Information Systems – TBD – Budget Development Software
Professional Services – Huron Consulting – UC Path Project
Professional Services – Collective HR Solutions – UC Path Project

$50,932
$70,000
$91,500
$54,500
$53,000
TBD
$300,000
$66,000

Agenda Item: *9
Finance Committee
November 8, 2018

ACTION ITEM
1.

REPORT BY:

Chief Financial Officer David Seward

2.

SUBJECT:

Nonstate Contracts and Grants in Excess of $50,000

3.

RECOMMENDATIONS:

That the Finance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors authorize the 2018-19
nonstate contracts and grants described in this report.
_____________________
Item:

*9.1

Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

Building Engineering - McAllister Tower
GSH Services
$626,850 per annum
Three years

Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with GSH Services for the provision of
building engineering services to 100 McAllister. The service agreement was recently re-bid after
many years of prior service under contract with ABM Engineering. Engineering staff are
represented by the International Union of Operating Engineers (IUOE) Local 39.
_____________________
Item:

*9.2

Title:
Vendor Name:
Revenue:
Term of Contract:

Site License & Usage Agreement - Academic Village
UC Davis
$114,000
One year

Description:
The UC Davis Graduate School of Management is renewing its site license agreement with UC
Hastings to serve as the location for their MBA program with emphasis on business analytics.

_____________________
Item:

*9.3

Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

Site Licence Agreement - Reunion Weekend
Fairmont Hotel
$110,000
One year

Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with the Fairmont Hotel in San
Francisco as the venue and banquet provider for the 2019 UC Hastings Reunion. Details will be
negotiated and incorporated into the final agreement.
_____________________
Item:

*9.4

Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

Site Licenese Agreement / Commencement
Another Planet Entertainment
$80,000
One-time Contract

Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with Another Planet Entertainment in
order to book the Bill Graham Civic Auditorium for UC Hastings 2019 Commencement.
Hastings Student Services is in charge of the event and works directly with the venue.
_____________________
Item:

*9.5

Title:
Professional Services – LRCP
Economic & Planning Systems
Vendor Name:
$165,000
Cost:
Term of Contract: One year
Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with Economic and Planning Systems
for professional services in support of the Long Range Campus Plan (LRCP), specifically the
development of 198 McAllister and renovation of 100 McAllister Street for below market rate
student and faculty housing. With the selection of Greystar as the master developer meets
economic feasibility thresholds, which suggests that proceeding with a developer upon
conclusion of the Request for Qualifications (RFQ) and Request for Proposals (RFP) process,
negotiations have commenced to arrive at an Exclusive Negotiating Agreement (ENA) and
subsequent long-term ground lease, development agreement and other implementing documents

for the design, construction and operation of the Academic Village project. The cost of these
services will be reimbursed by Greystar and ultimately be incorporated into the overall financing
package.
_____________________

Item:

*9.6

Title:
Professional Services – LRCP
Vendor Name:
Telesis Engineering
Cost:
$55,000
Term of Contract: One year
Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with Telesis Engineering for the
provision of services related to peer review of structural engineering solutions to assure that the
seismic performance of both the newly constructed 198 McAllister building and the rehabilitated
100 McAllister buildings conform to the UC Hastings Seismic Policy. The consultant will also
be charged with organizing peer review and coordinating with the Seismic Review Committee.
The cost of these services will be reimbursed by Greystar and ultimately be incorporated into the
overall financing package.
_____________________
Item:

*9.7

Title:
Professional Services LRCP
Vendor Name:
Public Financial Management
Cost:
$50,000
Term of Contract: One year
Description:
Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with Public Financial Management
(PFM) to provide financial advisor services for the Long Range Campus Plan mixed use, campus
housing project. Their role is to provide financial analysis to assess the viability of tax exempt
debt issuance options to complement private equity financing and to provide expert advice to UC
Hastings as project financing proceeds. The cost of these services will be reimbursed by Greystar
and ultimately be incorporated into the overall financing package.
_____________________
Item:

*9.8

Title:
Legal Services – LRCP
Vendor Name:
Gibson Dunn
Cost:
$410,000
Term of Contract: One year
Description:

Contract authority is requested to enter into an agreement with Gibson Dunn to prepare legal
documents governing the relationship between Greystar and UC Hastings. The core documents
for the proposed transaction are as follows: (1) A Lease Disposition and Development
Agreement (LDDA); (2) a ground lease or leases between UC Hastings as the Master Landlord
and Greystar as the Master Tenant; and (3) a sublease or subleases between Greystar as the
Tenant and UC Hastings and/or other entities as subtenants. There may be additional documents,
depending on the ultimate structure of the transaction. The scope of the work will include
participating in negotiations and drafting the core documents and any related documents and
transactions. The following is a preliminary budget for negotiating and documenting the three
core components of a transaction:




Lease Disposition and Development Agreement: $100,000-175,000
Ground Lease(s): $100,000-175,000
Sublease(s): $100,000-150,000

Cost, estimated at the mid-point for each element, will be reimbursed by Greystar and ultimately
be incorporated into the overall financing package.
_____________________
Item:

*9.9

Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

Design Services – LRCP Kane Hall
MKThink Architects
To be Determined
One-year contract

Description:
Authority is requested to enter into a design services agreement for the purposes of preparing
construction documents and drawings for the following scope of work:








Large Classrooms – To support the instructional program, two large classrooms are being planned
for the ground floor. One large classroom is also set for the sixth floor.
All Gender Restroom – To provide additional capacity in light of the addition of teaching spaces,
a multi stall all gender restroom is planned for the ground floor.
Lobby Improvements – To create a path of travel for the elevator serving all six floors of Kane
Hall, selective demolition involving the area currently occupied by the mail room is needed.
Coffee Shop – A coffee shop is planned for the area currently occupied by the Student
Information Center and bike cage.
Space Consolidation – The purchasing, mail room and business center functions will be
consolidated and reconfigured in the space currently occupied by the Purchasing Department and
warehouse.
Exhaust Ducting – The existing duct supporting the food preparation kitchen in the Law Café are
not code compliant and all cooking involving open flame has been prohibited. Plans will be
developed to determine project cost and feasibility of an exhaust system upgrade.

_____________________

Item:

*9.10

Title:
Vendor Name:
Cost:
Term of Contract:

Project Management Services – Kane Hall - LRCP
Conversion Management Associates
$129.000
One-year contract

Description:
Authority is requested to enter into a professional services agreement for the purposes providing
project management support for tenant improvement projects in Kane Hall. CMA will act as the
Project Manager (PM) for tenant improvement projects. Duties will include the following components:












Maintain a project implementation plan, including project objectives and success criteria,
deliverables, role/responsibilities/contact information, communication protocols, document
control methodology, cost management, schedule management and quality management plans,
for all Projects and Sub-Projects described below.
Assume primary responsibility for coordination with all existing vendors for the Projects and
Sub-Projects.
Assist in the formulation of plans/specifications/drawings for use in the public bidding process,
evaluating proposals and assisting UC Hastings in the selection of vendors, and preparing
documentation as may be required.
Determine phasing of work, critical paths, and milestones for Projects to achieve maximum
efficiency and minimal disruption to the UC Hastings community.
Coordinate and ensure consistency and continuity across all Sub-Projects.
Develop and maintain a master schedule of all Sub-Projects and coordinate the work of engineers
and professional service providers to achieve optimal Project integration strategies.
Facilitate design sessions, project meetings, status update meetings with the audiences at the line
of business and executive levels and ensure meeting minutes are produced and distributed.
Track Project documents (feasibility reports, statements of work, project plans, etc.) and maintain
a repository of all Project documents.
Assist College staff in review and approval of Project-related invoices and other fiscal oversight
support.

Compensation for services provided shall be made on an hourly basis, based on the CMA rate of
$265.00 per hour. The contract has a “not to exceed” cap of $129,000 based on an anticipated
workload of ten hours per week for the next twelve months. Hastings agrees to standard, typical
and reasonable reimbursable expenses not to exceed 10%.

_____________________

Item:

*9.11

Title:
Grantor:
Award:
Term:

Grant – Haitian Law Clinic Development
U.S. Department of State
$90,384
November 2018 to September 2019

Description:
UC Hastings has received a grant of $90,384 to support academic exchanges, including a
“training-of-trainers” symposium, to advance clinical legal education in Haiti through a
partnership between UC Hastings and l’École Supérieure Catholique de Droit de Jérémie
(ESCDROJ). The first exchange aims to bring participants from la Clinique de recherche
d’analyse et d’assistance légale (CRAALE), the newly-launched in-house law school legal aid
clinic at ESCDROJ, to UC Hastings to engage in a clinical legal education “training-of-trainers”
symposium and related activities. The grant will also support reciprocal travel by UC Hastings
faculty, lawyers, and students to ESCDROJ for further exchange in Haiti. The overall objective
is a sharing of best practices for clinical legal education.
_____________________
Item:

*9.12

Title:
Grantor:
Award:
Term:

Grant – Care Ecosystem
Merck Foundation & Health Partners
$51,327
July 2018 to June 2020

Description:
The Consortium on Law, Science & Health Policy will be engaged in working collaboratively
with UCSF to expand policy directives tailored for hospitals in the legal frameworks and best
practices supporting dementia patients in end-of-life decisions and directives.
_____________________
Item:

*9.13

Title:
Grantor:
Award:
Term:

Grant –Barriers: Barriers to Nursing Mothers in Workplace
Kellogg Foundation
$650,000
September 2018 to August 2021

Description:

UC Hastings has received a grant of $650,000 grant to study approaches to eliminating barriers
to breastfeeding faced by low-income and African-American mothers in the workplace and on
campus by strengthening legal protections for nursing mothers, educating professionals and
parents about lactation laws and providing legal support to advocates and organizations.
_____________________

4.

PROPOSED RESOLUTION:

That the Finance Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve the contracts and
authorize acceptance of the following grants:
General Operations
*9.1 Building Engineering – GSH Services – McAllister Tower
*9.2 Site License & Usage Agreement – UC Davis - Academic Village

$626,850
$114,000

*9.3 Site License Agreement – Fairmont Hotel – Reunion Weekend
*9.4 Site License Agreement – Another Planet - Commencement

$110,000
$80,000

UC Hastings Campus Housing & Mixed Use – Reimbursed Costs
*9.5 Professional Services – LRCP – Economic & Planning Systems
*9.6 Professional Services – LRCP – Telesis Engineering
*9.7 Professional Services – LRCP – Public Financial Management
*9.8 Legal Services – LRCP – Gibson Dunn

$165,000
$55,000
$50,000
$410,000

(Revenue)

UC Hastings Long Range Campus Plan – Kane Hall
*9.9 Design Services – LRCP Kane Hall – MkThink Architects
*9.10 Project Management Services – LRCP Kane Hall – CMA

TBD
$129,000

Grants
*9.11 Grant – U.S. State Department – Haitian Law Clinic Development
$90,384
*9.12 Grant – Merck Foundation & Health Partners – Care Ecosystem Project $51,327
*9.13 Grant – Kellogg Foundation – Barriers: Nursing Mothers in Workplace $650,000

Agenda Item: 10
Finance Committee
November 8, 2018

REPORT ITEM
1.

REPORT BY:

Chief Financial Officer David Seward

2.

SUBJECT:

Long Range Campus Plan – Update

3.

REPORT:

A high level summary on the status of implementation efforts for the Long Range
Campus Plan (LRCP) will be presented at the Finance Committee at its November
meeting.


Academic Village: Campus Housing Project – 198 McAllister & 100 McAllister

UC Hastings is implementing its Long Range Campus Plan to address a key need for
affordable campus housing and to promote a community of learning bringing in other
institutional partners such as UCSF and UC Davis, the YMCA of San Francisco, among
others, to create a new, vibrant multi-institutional urban campus.


Replacement Academic Building Project – 333 Golden Gate Avenue

The design building team of Clark Construction and its architects SOM are executing the
project under the oversight of the Department of General Services. Site preparation,
demolition and excavation work is underway. Potential schedule slippage of 31 days is
possible due to the discovery of higher volumes of Class 2 soils necessitating more
rigorous testing to assure proper disposal. A project status report dated September 30,
2018 prepared by AECOM, project managers under contract with the Department of
General Services is attached. The occupancy target that will allow commencement of
instructional activities in January 2020 remains unchanged.

Attachments:



333 Golden Gate Avenue - Monthly Construction Progress Report – September
2018

UC Hastings
College of the Law

Agenda Item: 10
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November 8, 2018

Academic Building Replacement Project
Project Number - 140632

Monthly Report 13 – September 2018
October 01, 2018

The new academic building is approximately 57,500 gross square foot which includes classrooms,
offices, legal clinics, conference center, and indoor/outdoor student life spaces. The building will be
constructed on a 12,000 square foot rectangular parcel owned by UC Hastings in downtown San
Francisco. The project will also include site demolition, hazardous material abatement, utilities,
fencing, landscaping, security, CCTV, interior furnishings, low voltage, and building management
systems designed for LEED Platinum Certification. This building will replace academic functions and
faculty offices currently in Snodgrass Hall at 198 McAllister Street, provide a more cohesive campus,
and enable UC Hastings to create State‐of‐the‐Art classroom facilities that would serve UC Hastings
for decades.

Location: 333 Golden Gate Avenue, San Francisco, CA
Owner: UC Hastings College of the Law
Project Manager: Department of General Services
Real Estate Services Division
Project Management & Development Branch
Construction Manager: AECOM
Master Architect: Ratcliff

Design-Build Contractor: Clark/SOM
Design-Build Contract Amount: $50,500,000
Notice to Proceed: August 25, 2017
Completion Date: December 12, 2019 (840 Calendar Days)

DESIGN-BUILD CONTRACT
Contract Amount:

Contract Duration
(Days):

Contract Completion
Date:

ORIGINAL

$50,500,000

840

12/12/19

AMENDED

$50,553,824.00

0

12/12/19

PROGRESS – SEPTEMBER 2018
The SFM approved the Phase III - Structural Package.
The Fire Alarm and Security 100% CD design packages
were reviewed and comments added to the Comment
Review Log.
The 100% CD Comment Review Log was returned to
the Contractor.

PENDING CHANGES
CHANGES BY REASON

#

Deficiency
Owner Requested Change
Owner Requested Change (DGS)
Hidden/Unforeseen Condition
Value Engineering
Time Extension
Other

0
8
0
7
0
0
1

$ Est. Value * % **
$169,975.00

17.14%

$820,648.17

82.77%

$833.50 .08%

___________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________

The shoring work for the north, west, and east walls
was completed.
The Betterment Contract between PG&E and UC
Hastings will not be required. The Contractor has
developed a alternative plan to provide Temporary
Power for the project.
The excavation of the project site to final subgrade
was completed.
The cement/lime stabilization of the site soil for
heavy equipment was completed.
Structural Steel fabrication commenced at Gayle’s
facility in Idaho.
The procurement of trade packages will continue.

LOOKAHEAD – OCTOBER 2018
The review of the 100% CD Design Review Log is
expected to be completed.
The Phase IV Design Package will be submitted for
SFM review.
The DPW and Special Traffic application permit for
storm sewer work on Golden Gate Ave. has been
submitted and work is expected to begin 10/8/18.
The installation of the piles on both the building site
and loading dock area will be completed.
The installation of pile caps and grade beams will
begin as soon as the pile installation is complete.
The fabrication of structural steel at Gayle’s facility in
Idaho will continue.
The procurement of the Contractor’s trade packages
will continue.

TOTALS

16

$991,456.67

100%

* Note proposals & estimates in progress.
** Percent of pending changes.

EXECUTED CHANGE ORDERS
Executed Change Orders Issued:

1

Summary Value of Executed Change Orders:

$53,824.00

Change Orders/Original Contract:

0%

Total Schedule Impact Granted (Calendar Days):

CHANGES BY REASON

#

Deficiency
Owner Requested Change
Owner Requested Change (DGS)
Hidden/Unforeseen Condition
Value Engineering
Time Extension
Other

0
1
0
0
0
0

0

$ Value

%* .

$53,824.00

.11%

_______________________________________________
TOTALS
1 $53,824.00
.11%
*Note: Percent of Contract.

REQUESTS FOR CLARIFICATION
Total Received:

36

Total Responded:

33

Total Outstanding:

0

Total Cancelled:

3

Avg. Days Response Time:

9.5

RFCs BY REASON
Deficiency
Owner Requested Change
Owner Requested Change (DGS)
Hidden/Unforeseen Condition
Suspension of Work
Value Engineering
Time Extension
Voided & Other Clarifications
TOTALS

#
0
18
0
0
0
2
0
13
33

%.
50.00%

5.56%
44.44%
100%

2

SCHEDULE MILESTONES

POTENTIAL PROJECT IMPACTS

(Base on Preliminary Baseline Schedule 01 32 00-001)

Notice To Proceed (No. 1)

August 25, 2017 (C, A)

Start CDs

August 25, 2017 (A)

Groundbreaking

October 20, 2017(A)

Partnering

November 1, 2017 (A)

Submit 35% CDs to DGS

November 7, 2017 (A)

Complete 35% CDs (No. 2)

December 12, 2017 (C,A)

Submit 50% CDs to DGS

February 19, 2018 (A)

Start Design: State Field Office

February 21, 2018 (A)

Start Demolition: Garden

February 27, 2018 (A)

Complete 50% CDs (No. 3)

March 20, 2018 (C,A)

Complete Design: State Office

March 27, 2018 (A)

Start Construction (No. 7)

April 23, 2018 (A)

Mobilize

April 24 2018 (A)

Complete 95% CDs (No. 4)

May 21, 2018 (A)

Complete 100% CDs (No. 5)

July 24, 2018 (P)

SFM/DSA 100% CDs (No. 6)

November 2, 2018 (C, P)

Complete Construction (No. 8)

August 16, 2019 (C, P)

Start FFE (No. 9)

November 12, 2019 (C, P)

Complete All Work (No. 10)

December 12, 2019 (C, P)

Projected: (P)
* Under Review

Contract: (C) Actual: (A)

• SFM plan review times are proving to be longer than
expected. The Contractor is submitting the plans in
a phased approach to reduce the longer than
expected review periods. A bin-time letter prepared
the Phase IV package has been submitted which
should help to reduce the overall review time of this
package.

SIGNIFICANT ISSUES
• The Betterment Contract between PG&E and UC
Hastings will not be required. The Contractor has
developed a alternative plan to provide Temporary
Power for the project by using metered power from
UC Hastings and two generators to provide the rest
of the power requirement.
• The Contractor provided notification that significant
costs may exist, $726,201.57, due to the building
foundation system design based on the site soil
reclassification and the change to the Importance
factor (IF). These Contractor proposals are being
negotiated and resolved.

SCHEDULE ANALYSIS
The Contractor has submitted a composite change
order to add 32-working days to the project schedule
duration. according to their current estimate. The
September 2018 Progress Schedule, 01 32 00-006A
shows that Certificate of Occupancy will now be issued
on December 27, 2019. This change order is being
reviewed and a schedule recovery plan is being
developed.

TARGET vs ACTUAL CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES
($ in thousands)

3

PROGRESS PHOTOS – SEPTEMBER 2018

9-7-18 - Compact to Subgrade

9-10-18 - Complete Shoring at North Wall

1

9-11-18 - Compaction at North Wall

3

9-14-18 - Utility Trench for (E) Telecom and FA
Conduit

9-13-18 - Site at Final Subgrade

4

9-17-18 - Cement Treatment of Subgrade

4

PROGRESS PHOTOS – SEPTEMBER 2018

9-26-18 - Auger Cast Pile Installation

9-25-18 - Auger Cast Pile Installation

1

9-27-18 - Auger Cast Pile Installation

3

9-28-18 - Auger Caste Pile Installation

9-28-18 - Auger Cast Pile Installation

4

9-28-18 - Grout Testing during Pile Installation

5
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REPORT ITEM
1.

REPORT BY: David Seward, Chief Financial Officer

2.

SUBJECT:

3.

REPORT:

Listing of Checks and Electronic Transfers over $50,000

Listed below are checks & electronic transfers issued by the College for the period of July 1, 2018 through
October 23, 2018.

Date
7/6/2018

7/6/2018

Check/
Electronic
Transfers
No.
270404

E0049247

Vendor
Student

Regents University California

Amount
$ 50,000.00

$ 378,324.90

7/10/2018

ACH1871

Internal Revenue Service

$ 481,162.43

7/10/2018

ACH1872

State California Franchise
Board

$ 90,510.93

Description
Student financial aid re-fund
Recording of procurement card
payments/PayIt on general ledger
for the month of June 2018
Payment for federal income taxes,
social security taxes and Medicare
taxes (employee and employer
share) PPE 6/30/18
State withholding employee income
tax payment for PPE MO EE
6/30/18

7/13/2018

E0049272

Corp State Street

$ 59,410.73

7/13/2018

E0049283

Regents University California

$ 50,525.11

Retirement program costs for
annuitants and employees – PostEmployment Benefits for PPE
6/30/2018
Employer/employee contributions to
UC Retirement Plan for PPE
6/30/18

7/17/2018

E0049305

Ellucian, Inc

$ 335,513.00

Contract renewal for 2018-19
finance software

7/17/2018

E0049308

Huron Consulting Services

$ 103,692.12

Consultation services through June
2018 re: UC Path
Employer/employee contributions:
Health and Welfare for PPE
06/30/2018 PYIT Regular A/P

7/17/2018

E0049310

Regents University California

$ 301,413.38

7/20/2018
7/25/2018

270482
270550

ABM Engineering
Roebuck Construction

$ 148,616.58
$ 120,291.75

7/31/2018
7/31/2018

270575
270590

Bloomburg BNA
Lexis Nexis Lexis Nexis

$ 62,630.00
$ 52,470.00

Engineering services for 100
McAllister through June 2018
Roofing project 200 McAllister
Electronic database subscription
June 2018-19
Online subscription June 2018-19

ACH1878

Internal Revenue Service

$ 642,113.66

8/1/2018

ACH1879

State California Franchise
Board

$ 135,476.70

Payment for federal income taxes,
social security taxes and Medicare
taxes (employee and employer
share) PPE 7/31/18
State withholding employee income
tax payment for PPE MO EE
7/31/18

8/3/2018

270604

Alliant Insurance Services

$ 513,027.90

Annual Insurance Premiums for
2018-19

8/3/2018

270607

CSAC Excess Insurance
Authority

$ 93,740.00

Annual Worker Compensation
Insurance Premiums for
2018-19

8/3/2018

E0049408

Ex Libris Inc.

$ 109,665.11

8/3/2018

E0049412

Regents University California

$ 427,295.51

Annual Library Subscription fee
2018-19
Employer/employee contributions to
UC Retirement Plan for PPE July
2018

$ 206,657.40

Recording of procurement card
payments/PayIt on general ledger
for the month of July 2018

$ 56,120.10

Retirement program costs for
annuitants and employees – PostEmployment Benefits for PPE
7/31/2018
Employer/employee contributions:
Health and Welfare for PPE
07/31/2018 PYIT Regular A/P

8/1/2018

8/9/2018

8/10/2018

9004928

E0049441

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

Corp State Street

8/14/2018

E0049490

Regents University California

$ 296,160.19

8/21/2018
8/21/2018

270771
270773

PG&E
Roebuck Construction

$ 67,010.77
$ 74,389.29

8/21/2018
8/21/2018

270777
E0050025

Township Building Services
BCGA Management

$ 126,950.00
$ 50,000.00

8/24/2018

E0050036

Fairmont Hotel

$ 65,425.00

Deposit for 2019 graduation venue
Deposits for November Alumni
Event

$ 484,225.94

Payment for federal income taxes,
social security taxes and Medicare
taxes (employee and employer
share) PPE 8/31/18

8/31/2018

Electric utility service for 200
McAllister through 7/30/18
Roofing project 200 McAllister
Janitorial Services through
7/31/2018

ACH1893

Internal Revenue Service

8/31/2018

ACH1894

State California Franchise
Board

$ 101,237.39

9/1/2018

E0050174

Regents University California

$ 429,927.49

Payment for state income taxes
(employee and employer share) PPE
8/31/18
Employer/employee contributions to
UC Retirement Plan for PPE
8/31/18

9/11/2018

E0050284

Corp State Street

$ 57,496.27

Retirement program costs for
annuitants and employees – PostEmployment Benefits for PPE
8/31/2018

9/11/2018

E0050303

Huron Consulting Services

$ 71,069.88

Consultation services through
7/31/18 re: UC Path

$ 298,434.27

Employer/employee contributions:
Health and Welfare for PPE
08/31/2018 PYIT Regular A/P

9/11/2018

E0050308

Regents University California

9/12/2018

270943

PG&E

$ 97,753.29

9/14/2018
9/28/2018

270958
E0050466

Carrier Commercial Services
Regents University California

$ 82,219.00
$ 874,869.40

Electric utility service for 200
McAllister through 8/31/18
Chiller breakers- Special Repairs
and Maintenance HVAC
FALL 2018 UCSHIP Payment

10/1/2018

ACH1901

Internal Revenue Service

$ 470,229.03

10/1/2018

ACH1902

State California Franchise
Board

$ 101,847.41

10/1/2018

E0050493

Regents University California

$ 433,119.80

Payment for federal income taxes,
social security taxes and Medicare
taxes (employee and employer
share) PPE 9/30/18
State withholding employee income
tax payment for PPE MO EE
9/30/18
Employer/employee contributions to
UC Retirement Plan for PPE
9/30/18
Recording of procurement card
payments/PayIt on general ledger
for the month of August / September
2018

10/3/2018

9004982

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

$ 381,653.57

10/5/2018

271098

PG&E

$ 67,010.77

10/5/2018

271104

Township Building Services

$ 126,950.00

Electric utility service for 200
McAllister through 9/30/18
Janitorial Services through
9/30/2018

10/5/2018

E0050494

Corp State Street

$ 58,049.71

10/5/2018

E0050517

Regents University California

$ 51,255.85

Retirement program costs for
annuitants and employees – PostEmployment Benefits for PPE
9/30/2018
Employer/employee contributions to
UC Retirement Plan for PPE
9/30/18

10/9/2018

E0050615

Huron Consulting Services

$ 70,487.34

Consultation services through Sept
2018 re: UC Path
Employer/employee contributions:
Health and Welfare for PPE
09/30/2018 PYIT Regular A/P

10/9/2018

E0050621

Regents University California

$ 305,327.30

10/12/2018
10/16/2018

271132
E0050665

ABM Engineering
Moss Adams LLP

$ 79,935.06
$ 60,000.00

10/23/2018

E0050726

West Group Payment Center

$ 91,404.00

Engineering services for 100
McAllister through September 2018
Audit Services 2017-18 FY
Annual 2018-19 subscription for
West Law package
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FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING

Meeting adjourned at ____:______ a.m. /p.m.

